Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

Y AV -
) :.'é-, ?;LT'.‘ ﬁ“:_".‘w’; :‘& %.&‘;g
L M T . i -]
ffﬁi‘» 'ff':“ PR o ‘%‘?E
& G T BANNE
LB e W s e &
4
Lo 'Mﬁdw”ﬂd—'
27!09!2013
COMPANIES HOUSE

Registration number 4161108

ad v 17 344



Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows

T Freyman

C Soenderby (resigned 1 January 2013)
M Smith

S Hudson

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company 1s that of a holding company There have not been any significant changes
in the company's principal activities in the year under review During 2012 one of the indirect susicharies of the
company, Abbott Laboratories Limited, spun off its research based pharmaceutical preducts division mnto a new
company, Abbvie Limited

Dividends

An mterim dividend was paid during the year of £19,610,000 (2011 £ml) The directors recommend that no
further dividends are paid (2011 £nil)

Fair review aof the business

As shown n the company's profit and loss account, the profit after tax for the period was £20,384,000 (2011
£769,000)

On | July 2012 the indirect subsidiary, Abbott Laboratories Ltd , spun off its research based pharmaceutical
business into a new company AbbVie Ltd Abbott Laboratories Ltd paid a dividend in specie of £19,610,000
made up of the entire ordinary share capital of AbbVie Ltd which was followed by all the intermediate holding
companies also paying a dividend i specie of £19,610,000 made up of the entire ordmary share capital of
AbbVie Ltd The company also has paid a dividend in specie of £19,610,000 made up of the entire ordinary
share capital of AbbVie Ltd

As part of the group reorganisation, the company was gified the class A voting shares in Abbott Strategic
Opportunities Ltd , from 1its parent company Abbott Hosprtals Ltd This holding was m turn assigned to Abbott
Knoll Investments BV, i return for the 1ssuance by Abbott Knoll Investments of shares in itself

As at 31 December 2012 AbbVie Ltd remamed m the Abbott Laboratories group of companies On | January
2013 Abbott Laboratories completed the spin off of its research based pharmaceutical business and transferred
all the AbbVie group companies to a new ultimate parent company AbbVie Inc

Principal risks and uncertainties

The company has some nisk from interest rate movements The directors do not consider these to be significant
risks The directors have received a letter of ongoing financial support from the ultimate parent company The
directors, having assessed the responses of the directors of the company's ultimate parent Abbott Laboratories to
their enquiries have no reason to believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about
the ability of the Abbott Laboratories group to honour the letter of ongomg financial support

Directors' habiites

The company has made qualifying third party indemmty provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the period and remain remain 1n force at the date of this report
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

cenense CORLINUED

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware of that information The
directors confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and which they know the audttors are
unaware of

Reappointment of auditors

The auditors Deloitte LLP are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Compamies Act 2006

Approved by the Board on 23 September, 2013 and signed on its behalf by

K Gogay
Company secret
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responstble for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements i accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

» prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

We have audited the financial statements of Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited for the year ended 31 December
20112, set out on pages 6 to 12 which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and related notes 1
to 15 The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation 15 applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company’s members
those matters we are requred to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities (set out on page 3), the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s fo audit and express an opimon on the financial statements i accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumnstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial nformation n the Directors’ Report to identify material
wconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opimon the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

+ have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

In our opmion the information given n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

ceeeseees CONtinUed

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, in our opimon

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Richard Muschamp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP,

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

Umnited Kingdom

23 September 2013
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Profit and Loss Account for the
Year Ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £ 000 £000
Turnover - -
Administrative expenses (19) (2)
Operating loss (19) 2)
Income from shares m group undertakings 19,610 -
Other interest recervable and similar income 3 1,044 1,048
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 20,635 1,046
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (251) (277
Profit for the financial year 11 20,384 769

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations

The company has no recogmised gains or losses for the year other than the results above

The notes on pages & to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
(Registration number: 4161108)
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £ 000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Investments 6 945,825 939,383
Current assets
Debtors 7 83,515 82,831
Cash at bank and in hand 85 38
83,600 82,869
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 8 (922,919) (922,962)
Net current hiabihties (839,319) (840,093)
Net assets 106,506 99,290
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 829 829
Other reserves 11 6,442 -
Profit and loss account 11 99,235 98,461
Shareholders' funds 12 106,506 99.290

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

M Smith
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statetnents
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year
and the preceding year, 1s as follows

Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost basis and have been prepared in accerdance with
applicable law and Umted Kingdom accounting standards

The company 15 exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as 90% or more of the voting rights are held
within the group

Exemption from preparing group accounts

The company has taken exemption from preparing group accounts as 1t 1s included n consolidated accounts for
a larger group which are drawn up as full consolidated audited accounts which are filed at Comparies House

Going concern

The directors have received a letter of ongomng financial support from the ulttmate parent company The
directors, having assessed the responses of the directors of the company's ultimate parent Abbott Laboratories to
therr enquinies, have no reason to believe that a matenial uncertamnty exists that may cast significant doubt about
the ability of the Abbott Laboratories group to honour the letter of ongong financial support

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to use the going concern basis
of acconting in preparing the annual report and accounts

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at historical cost less provision for any diminution n value

Taxation

UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expecled to be paid, or recovered, using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recogmised n respect of all uming differences that have oniginated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date Timung differences are differences between the company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the accounts that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments 1 periods different from those
m which they are recognised in the accounts A net deferred tax asset 1s recognised as recoverable only when, on
the basis of available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted Deferred tax 1s not
discounted

Interest iIncome

Interest income 1s due to the company from cash deposits with affiliated companies or third party banks Interest
income 1s calculated on a daily basis and accrued monthly

Encome from shares in group undertakings

Dividend income from subsidiary companies 1s recogmised on the date the directors of the subsidiary declare the
dividend
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

sreresene CONRtinHed

Auditor's remuneration

2012 2011

£ 000 £ 000
Audit of the financial statements 6 6
Other mterest recervable and similar income

2012 2011

£ 000 £ 000
Interest from group companies 1,044 1,048

StafT costs

During the current year and prior pertod all the directors were paid by other affiliates within the Abbott
Laboratories group of companies They received no emoluments from the company The company has no other
employees

Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2012 2011

£ 000 £000
Current tax
Corporation tax charge 251 27
Total current tax 251 277

Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

Tax on profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s lower than (2011 - the same as) the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 - 26 5%)

The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011

£ 000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 20,635 1,046
Corporation tax at standard rate 5,056 277
Dividends not subject to UK corporation tax (4,805} ~
Total current tax 251 277
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

Investments held as fixed assets

Shares 1n group undertakings and partictpating interests

Cost
At | January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012
Net book value

At 31 December 2012

Details of undertakings

creesenes CORTIRUEd

The company has investments 1n the following subsidiartes

Abbott Knoll Investments BV

Through the company's investment in Abbott Knoll Investments BV the company has investments

following companies

Abbott (UK) Holdings Lid

Abbott (UK) Finance Ltd

Abbott Laboratories Ltd

Abbott Diabetes Care Ltd

Murex Biotech Ltd

Abbott Strategic Opportunities Lid

Subsidiary
undertakings Total
£ 000 £ 000
639,383 939,383
6,442 6,442
945,825 945,825
045,825 945,825
Holding/
Country of Principal Activity Class of Proportion of
Incorporation Shares
voting rights
Netherlands Holding Company Ordinary 100%

Country of
Incorporation

Class of

Principal Activity Shares

in the

Holding/
Proportion of
voting rights

Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Bermuda
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Holding company Ordmary

Group financing Ordinary
Healthcare Ordinary
Healthcare Ordinary
Healthcare Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Global group financing Class A & B 100%
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Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

ceeerenns CORLIRUEd

Debtars

Amounts owed by group undertakings

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax
Accruals

Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid

829 (2011 829) ordinary shares of £1,000 each

Dividends

Dividends paid

Current year mterim dividend paid

The interim dividend paid was £23,655 per share (2011 £ml)
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2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
83,515 82,831
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
922,777 922,775
123 162
19 25
922919 922,962

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
£000 £000
829 829
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
19,610 -




Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

ceenenees CORtinued
|
11 Reserves ‘
Other Profit and
reserves loss account Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 January 2012 - 98,461 98,461
Profit for the year - 20,384 20,384
Dividends - {(19,610) (19,610)
Captal contribution 6,442 - 6,442
At 31 December 2012 6,442 99,235 105,677
12 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
Profit attributable to the members of the company 20,384 769
Capaital contribution in the year 6,442 -
Dividends (19,610) -
Net addition to shareholders' funds 7216 769
Shareholders' funds at 1 January 99290 98,521
Shareholders' funds at 31 December 106,506 99,290

13 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing

transactions with other members of the group

14 Control

The company 15 controlled by the immediate parent company Abbott Holdings Limited, incorporated 1o the
Bahamas The largest and smallest group in which the results of Abbott Equity Holdings Unlimited are
consohdated 1s the ultimate parent company Abbott Laberatories, incorporated in the State of [lhinois, USA The
consolidated accounts are available to the public and may be obtained from Abbott Laboratories, 100 Abbott

Park Road, Abbott Park, IL60064-6400, USA

15 Post balance sheet events

On 1 January 2013 Abbott Laboratories completed the spin off of its research based pharmaceutical busmess

and the AbbVie group companies ceased to be part of the Abbott Laboratories group of companies
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings
{dkttars and shares n [housands excep! per share data}

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Year Ended December 31 2012 201 2010
Net Sales $39,873,910 $38,851,258 $35,166,721

Cost of products sold 15,119,718 15,540,580 14,665,192
Research and development 4,322,182 4,129,414 3,724,424
Acguired in-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 672,500 313,200
Selling, general and admnistrative 12,059,495 12,756,817 10,376,324
Total Operating Cost and Expenses 31,788,395 33,009,311 29,079,140
Operating Earrungs 8,084,515 5,751,048 6,087,581

Interest expense 592,403 530,141 553,135
Interest (income) (79.,225) {85,186) {105,453}
Net loss on extinguishment of dabt 1,350,973 - -

Net foreign exchange {gain) loss {8,044} {50,271) (10,924)
Other {income) expense, net {34,206) 158,632 (62,011)
Earnings Before Taxes 6,262,614 5,198,642 5,712,834

Taxes on Earnings 299,694 470,183 1,086,662

Net Earnings $ 5,962,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Basic Earnings Par Common Share $ 376 $ 303 $ 208
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share 3 372 3 301 8 2 96
Average Number of Commaon Shares Outstanding Used for Basic

Earrings Par Common Share 1,675,378 1,557,643 1,546,400
Dilutive Common Stock Oplions and Awards 16,460 9,746 9,622
Average Numbar of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Dilutve Common Stock Options and Awards 1,591,838 1,567,389 1,556,022

Qutstanding Common Stock Options Hawving No Dilutive Effect 1,166 26,789 29,403

The accompanying notas 10 consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
{dokars in thousandig}

Yoar Endled Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Net Eamnings $5,962,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172
Foresgn currency translation {loss) adjustments 6,826) {817,539) (2,290,256)
Net actuanal {fosses) and prior servce cost and credits and amortization of

net actuanal losses and prior service cost and credits,

net of taxes of ${276,076) in 2012, $(391,528) in 2011 and ${70,389) n 2010 (864,935) (510,444) (59,447)
Unrealized (losses) gains on markeatable equity secunties,

net of taxes of ${4,679) n 2012, $8,338 in 2011 and $61 in 2010 {7.066} 14,442 106
Net adustments for dervatve instruments designated as cash flow haedges,

net of taxes of ${29,417)in 2012, $19,857 in 2011 and $20,567 n 2010 {117,666} 83,202 128,677
Other Comprahensive {l0ss) {996,493} {1,230,339) (2,220,920)
Comprehenswva Income $4,966,427 $3,488,110 $ 2,405,252
Supplemental Accumulated Othar Comprehensive Income Information,

net of tax as of December 31

Cumulative foreagn currency transiation loss (gamn) adjustments § 79353 & 72,527 § (745,012)
Net actuanal losses and pnor service cost and crediis 3,595,554 2,730,619 2,220,175
Cumulative unrealized (gains) on marketable equity secunties (31,363) (38,429) (23.987)
Cumulative {gains} on denvative instruments designated as cash flow hedges (49,866} {167,532) {84,330)

The accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements are an integral parl of this statement
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Abbett 2012 Annual Report

(dodars » thousands)

Year Ended Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Cash Flow From {Used in) Operating Actwities

Net sarnings $ 5,862,920 $4,728,449 $ 4,626,172
Adjustments to reconcile earnings to net cash from operating activities —

Dapreciation 1,363,673 1,395,371 1,207,450
Amortization of intanglble assets 1,419,534 1,648,523 1,416,855
Share-based compensation 433,114 382,602 387,183
Acquired in-process and collaborations research and dsvslopment 288,000 672,500 313,200
Investing and financing {gains) losses, net 356,020 141,565 126,337

Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -

Trade receivables 35,996 (670,152) {394,665)
Inveniones (417,053) (129,621) 139,857

Prepaid expenses and other assets (35,298) 413,266 553,145

Trade accounts payable and other habilities (134,209) 1,789,652 572,533
Incomse taxes (1.309,269) (1,402,078) (212,086)
Net Cash From Operating Actnties 9,314,401 8,970,077 8,735,881

Cash Flow From {Used in} Investing Actvilies

Acquisitions of businesses and technologles, net of cash acquired (1,227,473} {672,500) (9,433,243)
Acquistiions of property and equpment {1,795,289) (1,491,500) (1,015,075}
Purchases of investment securities (11,997,654) (5,109,987} (805,932}
Proceeds from sales of investmant secunties 8,936,406 5,648,720 954,361

Release of (deposit of) restncted funds - 1,870,000 {1,870,000)
Other 2,722 16,099 (18,426)
Net Cash {Used in} From Investing Actmties {6,081,288) 260,832 12,188,315}
Cash Flow From (Used in) Financing Activities

Proceeds from 1ssuance of (repayments of) short-term debt and other 783,868 {1,964,685) {203,854}
Proceeds from ssuance of long-term debt and debt with matunties over 3 months 14,700,000 1,000,000 4,000,000
Repayments of ong-term debt and debt with matunties over 3 months (11,071,178} (3,012,426} (1,673,998}
Purchases of common shares (2,364,240) (77.,007) (866,825)
Proceeds from stock options exerctsed, including income 1ax benefit 1,850,454 968,759 328,411

Dmdends paid (3,182,811} (2,938,098) (2,671,475}
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Actmvities 716,093 (6,023,455) {1,087,741)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 40,137 (43,005) (620,893}
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalants 3,989,343 3,164,449 {5,160,968)
Cash and Cash Equwalents, Baginning of Year 6,812,820 3,648,371 8,809,339
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 10,802,163 $6,812,820 £ 3,648,371

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Incoma taxes paid $ 1,366,581 $1,781,802 $ 809,710
Interest pad 575,895 544,559 580,168

The accompanying notes 1o consolidatad financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet
{dfokars in thousands}

Decembear 31 2012 2011 2010
Assels
Current Assets
Cash and cash squivalents $10,802,183 $ 6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Investrnants, primarily bank time deposits and U S treasury bills 4,371,821 1,284,539 1,803,079
Restricted funds, prmarily U S treasury bills - - 1,872,490
Trade recevables, less allowances of —
2012 $405,921, 2011 $420,579, 2010 $388,564 7.612,860 7,683,920 7,184,034
Inventories
Finished products 2,345,455 2,220,527 2,058,735
Work in process 628,874 432,358 383,580
Materials 817,984 631,364 746,419
Total Inventones 3,792,318 3,284,249 3.188,734
Deferred income taxes 2,986,216 2,700,540 3,076,051
Other prepaid expenses and recewvables 1,757,210 2,002,706 1,644,770
Total Current Assels 31,322,583 23,768,774 22,317,529
Investmants 273,595 378,225 302,049
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 604,462 633,917 648,988
Buildings 4,259,240 4,467,387 4,334,236
Equpment 13,110,833 12,216,388 11,813,618
Construclion In progress 954,362 698,873 577,460
18,928,887 18,016,565 17,374,302
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,865,840 10,142,610 9,403,346
Net Property and Equipment 8,063,047 7,873,855 7.970,956
Intangible Asssts, net of amortization 8,588,285 9,989,636 12,151,628
Goodwill 15,774,127 15,705,380 15,930,077
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Assets 3,213,307 2,560,923 1,901,613
$67.234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
fcotars in thousands)

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

December 31 2012 2011 2010

Liabilities and Sharaholders” Investment

Current Liabillies

Short-term borrowings $ 2,081,839 $ 2,347,859 $ 4,349,796

Trade accounts payable 1,796,920 1,721,127 1,635,759

Salanes, wages and commissions 1,427,765 1,260,121 1,328,665

Other accrued liabilties 6,787,805 7,854,994 6,014,772

Dwidends payable 221,340 754,284 680,749

Incoma taxes payable 655,424 514,947 1,307,723

Currant portion of long-tanm debt 308,823 1,026,896 2,044,970

Total Current Liabilities 13,280,176 15,480,228 17,262,434

Long term Debt 18,085,302 12,039,822 12,523,517

Post-employment Obligations and Other Long-term Liabilites 9,056,234 8,230,698 8,022,770

Cormmitments and Contingencies

Shameholders' Investment

Prefarred shares, one dollar par valug

Authorized — 1,000,000 shares, none issued - - -

Common shares, without par value

Authorzed — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484,

2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 11,754,552 9,817,134 B,744,703

Common shares held in treasury, at cost —

Shares 2012 99,262,992,

2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 {6,590,908} (3,687,478) 3,916,823}

Earnings employed in the busingss 24,150,996 20,907,362 19,215,768

Accumulated other comprehenswve income (l05s) {3,593,678) {2,597,185) {1.366,846)

Total Abbott Sharehotders’ Investment 26,720,961 24,439,833 22,676,802

Noncontroling Interests in Subsidianes 92,271 86,312 88,329

Tolat Shareholders’ Investment 26,813,232 24,526,145 22,765,131
$67,234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852

The accompanying notes to consolrdated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment
{dolars i thousands except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Common Shares

Baginning of Year

Shares 2012 1,638,870,201, 2011 1,619,689,876, 2010 1,612,683,987 $ 9817134 $ 8,744,703 $ 8,257,873
Issuad under incentive stock programs

Shares 2012 37,080,283, 2011 19,180,325, 2010 7,005,889 1,853,574 954,148 316,071

Shara-based compensation 434,601 382,328 388,493
Issuance of restricted stock awards (350,757} (264,043} (217,734)
End of Year

Shares 2012 1,675,930,484, 2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 $11,754,552 $ 0,817,134 $ 8,744,703
Common Shares Held in Treasury

Baginning of Year

Shares 2012 68,491,382, 2011 72,705,928, 2010 61,516,398 $ (3.687,478) $ (3.916,823) $(3.310,347)
Issued under incentwe stock programs

Shares 2012 6,691,748, 2011 4,638,841, 2010 4,166.200 362,764 249,876 224,237
Purchased

Sharas 2012 37,463,358, 2011 424,295, 2010 15,355,730 {2,266,195) {20,531) {830,713)
End of Year

Shares 2012 99,262,992, 2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 $ (5,590,900) $ (3,687,478) $ (3,916,823)
Earnings Employed in the Business

Beginning of Year $20,907,362 $19,215,768 $17,342,694
Net sarnings 5,962,920 4,728,449 4,626,172
Cash dvidends declared on common shares

(per share — 2012 $1 67, 2011 $1 92, 2010 $176) {2.649,866) {3,011,631) (2,731,584)
Eftect of common and treasury share transactions (69,420} (25,224) {21,514)
End of Year $24,150,996 $20,907,362 $19,215,768

Accurnulated Gther Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Beginmng of Year $ (2,597,185) $ (1,366,846} $ 854,074

QOther comprehensive income {loss) (996,493) {1,230,339) (2,220,920}
End of Year $ {3.593.678) $ (2,597,185) $ {1,366,846)
Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidianas

Beginning of Year $ 8B312 & 83320 $ 43,102
Noncontrolling Interests’ share of income,

business combinations, net of distributions and share repurchases 5,959 (2,017} 45,227

End of Year $ 92,271 $ 86312 $ 88,329

The accompanyTg notes to consolidated financlal statements are an integral part of this statement

30




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Sununauy of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business — Abbotl’s pnncipal business s the
discovery, development, manufacture and sale of a broad line
of health care products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, one In dversified medical products

and the other In research-based pharmaceuticals To accomplish
the separation, Abbott created a now company, AbbVie Inc for its
research-based pharmaceuticals business which consists primanly
of Abbott's Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment On
January 1, 2013, Abbott distnbuted all of the outstanding shares of
AbbVie Inc o Abbotl’s sharsholders As a result of the distnbutton,
AbbVie 1s now an independent company trading under the symbol
“ABBV* Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the histonical results
of the research-based pharmaceuticals business will be reflected in
Abbott's consolidated financiaf statements as discontinued operatrons

Coancentration of Risk and Guaranfeas — Due 1o the nature of its
operations, Abbott 1s not subject to significant concentration nsks relat-
ing to customars, products or geographic locations, except that three
U'S wholesalars accounted for 23 percent of trade receivables as of
December 31, 2012 and 2010 and 22 percant of trade recenables as
of December 31, 2011 In addition, governmental accounts in ltaly,
Spain, Greaca and Portugal accounted for 16 percent, 23 percent, and
21 percent of total net trade recevables as of Decerber 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively Product warranties are not significant

Abbeott has no matenal exposures to off-balance sheet arrangements,
no special purpose entitied, nor actmbes that nclude non-
axchanga-traded contracis accounted for at fair value Abbott has
penodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course of busi-
ness, such as assignment of product nghts, with other comparues
which has resulted 1n Abbott becoming secondanly iable for obliga-
tions that Abbott was previcusly prmanily hable Since Abbott no
longer maintains a busmness relationship with the other parties, Abbott
1S unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of
future payments, if any, under these obligatons Based upon past
expenanca, the lkehhood of payments under these agreaments 15
remote Abbott penadically acquires a business or praoduct nghts n
which Abbott agrees to pay contingent considaration based on attan-
ing certan thresholds or based on the occurrence of certain events

Basis of Consolidation and Change in Accounting Principle — Pror
to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foraign subsiiianes wera consol-
dated based on a fiscal year ended Novembar 30 due 1o the time
needed to consolidate these subsidianes Effective January 1, 2011,
the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of foreign
subsidianas was eliminated and the year-end of foreign subsichanes
was changed to December 31 Abbott believes that the change in
accounting principle related to the elimination of the one month report-
Ing lag 1s preferable because it resulls n more contemporaneous
reporiing of the results of foreign subsidiaries In accordance with
apphcable accounting iterature, a change tn subsidianes' year-and is
treated as a change n accounting principle and requires retrospective
applcation The cumulative effect of the change was an increase in
retaned earnings of $2689 million as of January 1, 2009 and a corre-
sponding decrease i other fong-term hiabiliies The impaat of the
changs was not matenal to the results of operations for the praviously
reporied annual and ntenm penods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
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those results have not been revised A charge of $137 million was
recorded to Cther (income) expense, net in 2011 1o recognize the
cumulative immatarial impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financial
statemenls been revisad, net sakes, operating earnings and net sam-
ngs in 2010 would have decreased by $21 milhon, $195 milion and
$175 milion, raspectively

Use of Estimates — The financial statements have been prepared

N accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States and necessarily include amounts based on estmates
and assumplions by management Actual results could differ from
those amounts Significant estimates include amounts for sales
rebates, income taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuation of intangible assets, Iitgation, denvative financial Instruments,
and nventory and accounis recevable exposures

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from product sales 1s recognized
upon passage of title and nsk of loss to customers Provisions for
discounts, rebates and sales ncentives to customers, and returns
and other adjustments are provided for in the penod the related sales
are recorded Sales incentves to customers are not matenal Histoncal
data is readlly avalable and rehable, and is used for estmating the
amount of the reduction in gross sales Revenue from the launch

of a new product, from an improved version of an existing product,

or for shipments in excess of a customer’s normal requirements are
recorded whan the conditions noted above are mat In those situa-
tions, managerment records a returns reserve for such revenus, If
necessary In certain of Abbott's businasses, primanly within diagnos-
tics and medical optics, Abbott participates in seling arrangements
that include muttiple daliverables {e g , Instruments, reagents, proce-
dures, and service agreemenis) Under these arrangements, Abbott
recogrizes revenue upon delivery of the product or performance of the
service and altocates 1he revenue based on the relative selling pnce of
each defiverable, which is based prmanly on vendor specific objective
evidence Sales of product nghts for marketable products are
recorded as revanue upon disposttion of the nghts Revenue from
hcense of product nghts, or for performance of research or selling
acimviies, 1s recorded over the penods earned

Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effect
of differencas between the tax bases of assets and habilities and thair
reporied amounts n the financial statements at the enacted statutory
rate to be in effect when the taxes are paid U S income taxes are
provided on thoss earnings of foreign subsidiaries which are ntended
to be remitied to the parent company Deferred income taxes are not
provided on undistnbuted sarnings reinvestad indefinitaly i foreign
subsidianes as working capital and plant and equipment  Interest and
penalties on income tax obligations are included in taxes on income

Earnings Per Share — Unvssted restncted stock that contain nonp-for-
fatable nghts to dwdends are treated as particypating securities and are
Incluclad in the computation of earnings per shara under the two-class
method Under the two-class method, net earmings are allocated
between common shares and participating secunties Net earnings aflo-
cated to common shares in 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $5 917 billien,
$4 714 billon and $4 613 billion, respecively

Pension and Post Employmen! Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuanally determined cost of pension and post employment benefts
over the service atinbution penods of the employees Abbott must
develop long-term assumptions, the most significant of which are the
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health care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected return
on plan assets Differences between the expected long-term return on
plan assets and the actual return are amortized over a five-year penod
Actuanal losses and gains are amorhized over the remaining service
attnbuton panods of the employaes under the comdor method

Farr Value Measurements — For assets and liabilities that are
measurad using quoted pnoes in active markats, total fair value Is the
published market pnce per unit multiphed by the number of urits held
without consideration of transaction costs Assets and liabilties that
are measured using significant other cbservabla inputs are valued by
reference to similar assets or labilties, adusted for contract restnc-
tiong and other terms specific to that asset or liabilty For these tems,
a significant portion of fair value is denved by referance to quoted
pnces of simiar assets or kabilities in active markets For all remaining
assets and kabilties, far value is denved using a far value model, such
as a discounted cash flow model or Black-Scholes modsl Purchased
intangble assets are recordad at far value The far value of significant
purchased intangible assets is based on independent appraisals
Abbott uses a discounted cash flow model to value intangible assets
The discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the
bming and amount of fidure net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital,
terminal values and market participants Intangible assets, goodwill
and indefinte-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at
least on a quarterty and annual basis, respectwely

Share Based Compensation — The valug of stock options and
restncted stock awards and units are amortized over therr service
penod, which could be shorter than the vesting penod if an employes
1s retirement eligible, with a charge to compensation expense

Litigation — Abbott accounts for litigation losses in accordance with
FASB ASC No 450, "Contingencies " Under ASC No 450, loss con-
tingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s
best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made,
amnimum loss contingency amount 15 recorded Legal fees are
recorded as ncurred

Cash, Cash Equvalents and Investments - Cash equivalents consist
of bank time deposits and U S treasury bills with onginal matunties of
thres months or less Investments in marketable equity secunties and
certain invastmants in debt secunties are classified as avalable-for sale
and are recorded at fair valua with any unrealized holding gams or
iosses, net of tax, ;ncluded in Accumulated other comprehensiva
ncome (loss) Investments in equity secunties that are not iraded on
pubhc stock exchanges are recorded at cost Invesiments in other
debt secunties are classified as held-to malurity, 8s management

has both the inten! and abilty to hold these secunties to matunty,

and are reported at cost, net of any unamortized prermium or discount
Income relating 1o these secunties 1s reported as interest Income

Abbott reviews the carrying value of investments each quarter to
determine whether an other than temporary decline in market value
exists Abbotl considers factors affecting the investes, factors affecting
the industry the investes operales in and general equily market trends
Abbott considers the length of time an investment’s market value has
been below carrying value and the near-term prospects for recovery to
carrying value When Abbott deterrines that an other than temporary
decling has occurred, the investmaent is written down with a charge

to Other (iIncome} expenss, not
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Trade Recewable Valuations — Accounts recevable are stated at their
nat realizable value The allowance against gross trade recelvables
reflects the best estimate of probable losses inherent in the recevables
portioho determined on the bass of histoncal expenence, specific
allowances for known troubled accounts and ather currentty available
information  Accounts receivable are charged off after all reasonable
means to collect the full amount {including itigation, where appropnate)
have been exhaustad

tnventones — Inventones are stated at the lower of cost {first-in,
first-out basis) or market Cosl includes matenal and conversion costs

Property and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful iives of the
assets The following table shows estmated useful ives of property
and equipment

Classlfication Estimatad Useful Lives
Builkdings 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)
Equipment 3 to 20 years (average 11 years)

Product Liabiity — Abbott accrues for product lability claims,

on an undiscounted basis, whan it 1s probable that a hability has been
incurred and the amount of the hability can be reasonably estimated
based on existing information The labilities are adjusted quanterly as
additional infoermation becomes avallable Recevables for nsurance
recovenes for product habilty claims are recorded as assets, on an
undiscounted basis, when It is prolbable that a recovery will be real
1zed Product liability losses are self-insured

Research and Development Costs — Internal msearch and devalop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred Clincal tnal costs mcurred by
third partes are expensed as the contracted work s performed Where
contingont milestone payments are due to third parties under research
and development arrangements, the milestone payment obligations
are expensed when the milestone results are achweved

Acquired in Process and Coflaborations Research and Davelopment
{IPR&D} — The iniial costs of nghts to IPR&D projects obtained in an
assat acquisihon ara expansed as IPR&D unless the project has an
alternative future use These costs Include nitial payments incurred
pnor to regulatory approval in connection with rasearch and devalop-
ment collaboration agreements that prowide nights to develop,
manufacture, market and/or sell pharmacautical products The fair
value of IPR&D projects acquired in a business cambination are
capitalized and accounted for as indsfimte-lived intangible assets

Nota 2 — Supplemental Ninanciad Information

(dollars in mithons)

Long term Investments 2012 2011 2010
Equity secunties $213 $317 $240
Othar &1 61 62
Total 5274 $378 $302

The loss on the extingushment of debt of $1 35 billion relates to the
early redemption of $7 7 bilion of long term notes  Tha loss consisis
ol the premium pard on the notes and the wnite oft of deferred financ-
Ing costs totaling $1 83 billon and was partially offset by a gain of
$479 million related to the unwinding of interest rate swaps related 1o
a portion of the debt Other income) expenss, net, for 2012 includss
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income of approximately $60 million from the resolution of a contrac-
tual agreemant and a loss of approxsmately $62 million for the
impairment of certain equity secunties As discussed i Note 1, Other
{income} expense, net, for 2011 Includses a charge of $137 millon to
recognize the cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 relat-
ing to the change in year end for foraign subsidiaries In addition,
Other (income} expensa, net, for 2011 Includes $56 million of fair value
adjustments and accration in the contingent consideration related to
the acquisiion of Solvay s pharmaceutical business Other (income)
expense, nat, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongoing con-
tractual paymants from Takeda associated with the conclusion of the
TAP joint venture

{dloliars in milkons)

Other Accrued Liabiitles 2012 2011 2010
Accrued rebates payable

to government agencies $1,020 $1,049 $ 900
Accrued other rebales {g) 1,070 1030 862
All other (b} 4,689 5,778 4,253
Total 56,788 $7.855 $6,015

(2} Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates of $300 $239 and $216 a1 Decernber 31 2012
2011 and 2010 reapectvely fre natted i trads recenables because Abbott's customers
arg invorced at a highar catalog price but only remit to Abbo*t ther contract price for the
products The 2011 balances have been rewsed to reflect a rectrssdication of ceran
amoun's from Acerued other 1608'es 1o Al other

)} 2011 ncludes $1 508 rela ed lo a previously disciosed government nves*iga‘on and
$400 for acqured In process research and development 2012 2011 and 2010 nchedas
acquisiton consideration payable of $400 related to the acquisi on of Pramal Healthcare
LUmtted's Heathcare Solutions busness

(diollars 1 millions)

Post smployment Obligations and

Other Long term Liatlites 2012 2011 2010
Defined bensfit pansion plans and

post emproymaent meadical and

dental plans for significant plans 4 557 $3,301 $2 425
Duotamed ncome taxes 710 703 1,112
Adl other (c) 3789 4,227 4 486
Total $9,056 38 231 $8,023

{c) 2012 2011 and 2010 ncludes ACOwSTON conSdaraon payabla of $385 $770 and
$1,150 raspectvely ralated to the acquisiion of Pramal Healhcare Limited's Healthcare
Solutions business

The judgment entered by the U S Distnct Court for the Eastern Distnct
of Texas against Abboit in its lingaton with WNew York Univarsity and
Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secure the jJudgment in the event that
Its appeal 1o the Federal Circuit court was unsuccessful in overturning
1he distnct court s decision In the first quarter of 2010, Abbotl depos-
ited $1 87 billon with an escrow agent and considered these assats to
be rastncled On February 23, 2011, the Federal Circunt reversed

the district court's final judgment and found Centocor's patent invalid
On Apnl 25, 2011 Centocor petitioned the Federal Circurt to rehear
and reconsider the decision In June 2011 the Federal Crrout denied
Centocor's petition and the restrictions an the funds ware Ufted

Abbott 2012 Annua! Report

Note 3 — Fmancial Instruments Derivatives and Fanr Value
Measures

Cartain Abbott foreign subsldianes enter into foreign currency forward
exchanga contracts to manage exposures to changas in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases by thosa
subsidianes whosa functional currencres are not the U S dollar
These contracts, totaling $1 6 bifion at December 31, 2012 and 2011
and $1 3 bilion at December 31, 2010 are designaled as cash flow
hedges of the vanability of the cash flows due to changas in forelgn
exchange rates and are recordad at fair value Accumulated gains
and losses as of Decermber 31, 2012 will be included in Cost of
products sold at the time the products are sold, generally through

the next twelve months The amount of hedge ineffectveness was
not signficant in 2012, 2011 and 2010

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts

to manage currency exposures for foreign cumency denomunated
third-party trade payables and recevables, and for intercompany
loans and trade accounts payable whera the receivable or payable I1s
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbott to selt or
buy foreign currencias, pnmanly European currencies and Japanese
yan, In exchangs for prmanly U S dollars and other European
currencies For Intercompany and trade payables and receivables,
the currency axposures are prnmarily the U S dallar, European curman-
cies and Japanese yen Al December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Abbott held $18 2 billon, $15 7 bilion and $10 8 billion, respectively,
of such foreign currency forward exchange contracts

Abbott has designated foreign denominated short-term debt as a
hedge of the net investment in a foreign subsidiary of approximatsly
$5615 mitlion, $680 milion and $650 million as of December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respecively Accordingly, changes in the far value

of this debt due to changes In exchange rates are recorded in
Accumulated other compraheansive ncome {loss), net of tax

Abbott 15 a party to iterest rate hedge contracts totaling $9 5 bilion,
$6 8 billon and $7 3 bilkon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
raspechively, to manage Its axposure to changes in the far value of
fixed-rate debt These contracts are designated as far value hedges
of the vanability of the fair valus of fixed-rate debt due to changes in
the long-term banchmark nterest rates The sifect of the hedge is to
change a fixed-rate nterast obligation to a vanable rate for that portion
of the debt Abboit records the contracts at far value and adjusts
the carrying amount of the fixed-rate debt by an offsetting amount
No hedge inaffeciveness was recordad in incoma in 2012 2011 and
2010 for these hedges

Gross unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale equity secunties
totaled $51 milkon, $64 milion and $40 millon at December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respecively
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The following table summanzes the amounts and location of certan
dervatve financial instrurments as of December 31

{dioltars m mitions} Fair Value — Assets Falr Valuo — Liabilities
2012 2011 2010 Balance Shest Caplion 2012 201 2010 Balance Shesl Caption
Interest rate swaps designated $185 $598 $138 Deferred income $ 80 5 — $ 368  Post-employment
as falr value hedges taxes and other assets ohtgations and ather
long-term liabilites
Foreign curency forward
exchange contracts —
Hadglng Instruments 22 115 16 Other prepatd 1" 2 10 Other accruad
Others not designated es hedges 08 165 109 axpenses and recelvables 135 178 120 habilties
Debt designated as a hedge of net - - - na 615 630 650  Shorl-termn borrowings

investrment i a foreign subsidiary

$305 $878 $263

841 $861 $816

The following table summanzes the actwity for foreign currency
forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedgss, debt
designated as a hedge of net investment in a foresgn subsidiary

and the amounts and location of income (expense) and gan (loss)
reclassified into income and for certan other dervative financlal
instruments The amount of hedge inefiectivansss was not significant
in 2012, 2011 and 2010 for these hadges

Galn (loss) Recognized In Other Income [expense) and Galn (loss)

({doliars n mihons) Comprehensive Incoma {loss) Reclassified into Income
2m2 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 Income Statement Gaption

Forelgn cumancy forward exchange g 2 $ 65 170 $138 $(26) § 63 Cost of products sold
contracts designated as cash flow hedges
Debt designated as a hedge of 65 {30) {75) - - - va
nat investment in a foreign subsidiary
Interest rate swaps designated as far valua hedges n/a na n'a 62 488 248 Interest expense
Forelgn currency forward exchange n/a na rva 108 1 155 et foreign exchange

conlracts not deslgnatad as hedges

The interest rale swaps am designated as far value hedges of the
vaniability of the farr value of fixed-rate debt due to changes in the
long term benchmark interest rates  The hadged debt 1s marked
to market, offsetting the affect of marking the interest rate swaps
to market

{gaun} loss

The camying values and farr values of certaln financial instruments as
of December 31 are shown in the table below The camying vatues of
all other financial Instruments approximate ther estmated far values
The counterpartias to finarkial instruments consist of select major
internatronal financial Insttutions  Abbott does not expect any lossas
from nonperformance by these counterparties

{dotlars i mions) 2012 201 2010

Canrying Fair Gamying Fair Carrying Fair

value Value Valug Value Value Value

Long term Investmen! Secunties
Equity secunties 3 213 $ 212 $ 37 s W7 $ 240 $ 240
Other 61 56 61 4z 62 43
Total Long term Debt {18,394} {19,588) {13 067) {15,129) {14 568) (15 723)
Foregn Currency Forward Exchange Contracts
Recenable position 120 120 280 280 125 125
(Payable) position {146) (146) (181) (181) {130} {130
Interest Rate Hedge Contracls
Recaivable postion 185 185 508 598 146 146
(Payable) pogition (80} (80) - - (36} (36}
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The foliowng table summanzes the bases used 10 measure
certain assets and fiabilities at far value on a recuming basis
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in the balance sheet
{doitars in milions) Basls of Falr Value Measurement

Ouatstanding Quoted Prices in Sigrificant Other Significary
December 31, 2012 Balances Active Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
Eqquity sacuntias $ 76 876 5 - -
Interest rate swap financial Instruments 185 - 185 -
Forsign cumency forward exchange contracts 120 — 120 =
Total Assets $ 381 $76 $ 305 $ —
Falr value of hedged long-term dabt $ a.632 $— $9,632 % -
Interast rate swap financlal instruments 80 — 80 -
Forsign cumency forward exchangs contracts 146 — 146 -
Contingant considaration related 1o business combinations. 323 - — 323
Total Liabines $10 181 $— $9,858 $323
Dacember 31, 2011
Equity secunties S 83 $93 3 — $ —
inerest rate swap financial instruments 598 — 508 —
Forelgn cumency forward exchange contracts 280 - 280 -
Total Assets § o7t $93 $ 878 $ —
Falr valug of hedged long term debt $ 7427 $— $7,427 $ -
Forelgn currency forward exchange confracts 181 — 181 -
Conlingent consideration refated to business combinations 423 - — 423
Total Liabiltes % 8,031 §— $7,608 $423
December 31, 2010
Eqity secuntias s 75 $75 $ - $ -
Interest rate swap financial instruments 146 — 146 -
Foreign cunency torward exchange conlracts 125 - 125 -
Total Assets $ 346 $75 $ 27 $ —
Fair value of hedged long tarm debt $ 7444 §— $7 444 s —
Interest rate swap finangial Instruments a6 —_ 6 -
Forelgn currency forward exchange contracts 130 — 130 -
Contingant consideration refated 1o businass combinations 365 - — 365
Total Liahitles % 7975 $— $7.,810 5365

Tha fawr value of the debt was delermined basad on the face vatus

of the debt adjusted for the farr value of the interast rate swaps, which
13 based on a discounted cash flow analysts The far value of the
contingent consideration was detenmined based on an independent
appraisal adjusted for the time value of money, exchange and other

changes i far value
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Note 4 — Post-Employment Benelis

Retirernent plans consist of defined benefit, defined contnbution and medical ard dental plans Information for Abbott's major defined benefil plans

and post-employment medical and dental benefit plans 1s as follows

{dolars n mirons) Defined Benedit Plans. Madical and Dental Plans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Projected benefit obligations, January 1 $ 8963 $ 8,606 $6,852 $1.857 $1,673 $1705
Service cost -~ banefits samed during the year 378 332 288 61 55 80
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 447 448 a1 B 88 101
Losses {galns), pnmarilly changes in discount rates, plan design changes
law changes and differences between actua! and estmated health cem costs 1,412 608 5685 148 {104) {153}
Benefits paid (302) (294) (289) 63) (62) {74}
Acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business - — 1045 - - 28
Sattlement - (776) - - — —
Other, prmarily forelgn currancy transtation 108 a1 (276) 5 7 6
Projected beneft oblgations, December 31 $11 004 $ 8,963 $ 8,606 $ 1889 $ 1,657 $18673
Plans assets at fair value January 1 $ 6961 $7,451 $5812 $ 389 $ 396 $ 34
Actual retum on plans' assets ars 29 782 48 5 55
Company contributions 3arg 394 525 40 40 74
Bangflits paid (302 (2094 {289} (60} 52) 74}
Acquisition of Solvays pharmaceuticals businass — - 763 — - —
Sattlement — (776) - - — -
Other, pnmanly forelgn currency translation 33 157 {142) — - -
Plans assets at fair value Decermber 31 $ 7049 $ 6,961 $ 7,451 $ 417 $ 389 $ 396
Projected benefit obligations
greater than plans assets, Decernber 31 $ (3,055} $(2 002) %(1,155) 501,472} $(1,268) $1.277)
Long term assets $ 69 $ 66 s 27 5 - s - s -
Short term kablities {39) (35) (34) - - -
Long term Eablitles {3,085) (2.033) {1,148} {1,472 {1,268) {1277
Met kablity $ {3,055} $(2 002) ${1,1565) $(1,472) $(1 269) $(1,277)
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (oss)
Actuanal losses, net $ 4,742 $3822 $2879 $ 701 $ 601 $ 713
Prior semvice cost (Crecits) I 25 30 (322} {364} (406)
Total $ 4,813 $3.847 $2909 $ amo $ 237 $ 307

The projected benefit obligations for non-U S defined benefit plans was
$3 1 bilon, $2 3 billon and $3 O bilkon at December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectvely The accumulated benefit obligations for all
defined banefit plans was $9 4 billon, $7 7 billon and $7 5 bullon at
Decamber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively For plans where the
accurmulated bensfit abligations exceeded plan assets at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, the aggregate accumulated benafit obligations
wera $7 9 bilion, $6 7 bilion and $2 0 bithon, respecively, the projected
benefit obhgations were $2 3 bilion, $7 9 bilbon and $2 2 billon, respec-
tvely, and the aggregate plan assets were $6 2 billion, $5 8 bilion and
$1 1 bikon, respectively

In connecton with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott wil transfer certan llabilities and assets of both defined

(dolars in mifions)

Defined Benefit Plans

bengfit pension plans and medical and dental plang The estimated
amount of the accumulated benefit cbigations, projected benefit
obligations, far value of assets and deferred gains and losses 1o be
assumed by AbbVie are $3 9 billon, $4 5 billion, $3 1 bilion and

$1 9 billion, respectively, for defined benefit plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated benefit abligations and deferred gains and
losses to be assumed by AbbVie are $501 millon and $114 milkan,
respectivaly, for medical and dental plans

Dunng 2011, $776 million of assets and labilites of a plan sponsored
by Abbott Healthcare BY, a Duich subsidiary of Abbott Laboratones,
were (rrevocably transferred to a Dutch insurance company in {full
satllement of that plan The assets were used to purchasea an annuty
contract to fulfil the plan's obligations

Medical and Daental Plans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Service cost — benefils earned during the year $376 $332 $ 288 $ 61 % 55 $ 60
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 447 446 421 81 88 101
Expected return on ptans’ assets {611) (608) {571) {33} (34) {31)
Sallterment - 40 - - — -
Amortization of actuanal losses 235 163 136 34 38 38
Amartization of prior serice cost (credits) 4 4 4 (42) 42) (22)
Total cost $ 451 3377 278 S101 3105 5146
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Other comprehensive income (loss) for 2012 includes amortization of
actuanal losses and prior service cost of $235 million and $4 million,
raspactively, and net actuaral losses of $1 2 billion for defined banefit
plans and amorteation of actuanal losses and prior service cradits of
$34 millon and $42 milhon, respectively, and net aciuanal losses of
$134 milion for medical and dental plans Other comprehensive ncome
{loss) for 201 1 ncludes amortization of actuanal losses and pnor service
cost of $163 milion and $4 millon, respectivaly, and net actuanal losses
of $1 1 bilhon for defined benefit plans and amortization of actuarial
lossas and pror service credits of $38 millon and $42 milkon, respec-
tvely, and net actuanal gains of $86 milion for medical and dental plans
Other comprehensive incomae {oss) for 2010 ncludes amortization of
actuarial losses and prior service cost of $136 million and $4 milion,
respectvely, and nel actuanal losses of $305 millon for defined benefit
plans ang amortization of actuanal lossas and pnor service credrts of
$38 millon and $22 milion, respectvely, and nel actuanal gains of

$177 millon for meci:cal and dental plans The pretax amount of actuar-
1al losses and pnior service ¢ost (credis) included in Accumulated other
comprehensive income {loss) at Decembar 31, 2012 that is expected

to be recognized In the net penodic benefit cost in 2013 s $175 millon
and $5 million, respectvely, for defined benefit pension plans and

$25 million and ${23) millicn, respectively, for medical and dental plans

The weighted average assumptions used to determine bensfit
obligations for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans
are as follows

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4 3% 50% 54%
Expecied aggregate average long term
change In compensation 53% 53% 51%

The waighted average assumptions used to determine the net cost for
defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are as follows

2012 201 2010
Discount rate 50% 54% 58%
Expected return on plan assets 8 0% 78% 78%
Expocted aggregate averags
long term change in compensation 53% 51% 49%

The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental plans
at December 31 ware as follows

2012 2011 2010
Haalth care cast trend rate
assumed for the nex! yaar % 7% 7%
Rate that the cost trand rate
gradually declines to 5% 5% 5%
Year that rate meaches the
assumed uliimate rate 2019 2019 2016

The discount rates used to measure liabililies were determined based
on high-quality fixed income secunlies that match the duration of the
expected retree benefits The health care cost trend rates rapresent
Abbott's expectaed annual rates of change in tha cost of health care
benelits and 1s a forward projectton of health care costs as of the
measurement date A ono-percentage point increase/{decrease} in the
assumed health care cost trend rate would increase/(decrease) the
accumulated post-employment benefit obligations as of Decaember 31,
2012, by $274 mullan/$(222) mdion, and the tatal of the sennce and
mtarest cost components of net post-employment health care cost for
the year then ended by approximately $24 millorv${19) million
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The fallowing table summanzes the bases used to measure defined
benefit plans' assets at fair value

{dollars in mylkons) Basis of Fair Value Measurement
Quoted  Significant
Prices in Cther  Sgnificant
Outstanding Actve  Observable Unobservable
December 31, 2012 Balances Markats Inputs inputs
Equitias
US large cap () $1,731 $1,731 $ — § -
U S mid cap (o) 461 140 a2 -
International {c} 1558 677 881 -
Fixed income securilies
U S government
secunies (d) B43 545 208 -
Corpoiate daebt
nstruments () 704 427 277 -
Nen US government
securities (f) 373 pl0] 272 -
Other (g) 23 18 5 -
Absolute mturn funds (h) 1941 425 825 691
Commaodities (i} 208 9 161 a8
Cther () 107 104 — 3
37 949 $a,177 £3 040 $732
December 31, 2011
Equities
U § large cap (a) $1470 $1.449 $ 5~
US mdcap ) 423 152 2n -
Intermatonal {c) w217 485 732 -
Fixad income securties
U5 government
sacunties {d) 857 370 487 -
Corporate debt
instruments (e} 527 223 304 -
Non US government
secuntes {f) 450 228 222 —
Other (g} 45 21 24 -
Absolute return funds {h) 1,709 334 751 624
Commodities ) 183 8 165 10
Other () 80 78 — 2
6961 $3,348 $2,977 £636
December 31, 2010
Equities
US large cap (a) $1523 $1499 $ 24 $ —
US midcap [b) 437 162 275 —
Internaticnal {c} 1,662 758 794 -
Fixed income secunties
U S government
secunties (d) 793 355 438 -
Corporate debt
instruments {e) 524 237 288 1
Non U S government
secunties {fy 758 172 586 -
Other (g} 40 20 19 1
Absolute retum funds (h) 1,426 258 582 586
Commotities § 242 5 234 3
Other ) 156 156 - —
$7 451 $3,622 $3,238 £59
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{a} A of index funds that track tha S&P 500 (50 percent in 2012 and 45 percent in 2011
and 2010) and separate aclively managed equity accounts that are benchimarked to the
Rusgsell 1000 {50 percent in 2012 and 55 percent n 2011 and 20109

{b} A rmux of indax funds (75 pertent) and separate acively managed aquity accounts
(25 percent) that track or are benchmarked 10 the S3P 400 miicap index

{c}  Primarily sep acively ped pooled im that are benchmarked
10 the MSCI and MSCI emerging markat indices

) nclax funda not ectvely managed (50 porcent in 2012 and 45 percent in 2011 and 2010)
&nd separate actvely managed accounts (S0 percent m 2012 and 55 percent in 2011
and 2010}

(8) Index funds not actvely managed {20 percent in 2012 40 percent in 2011 and 15 percant
in 2010} and separats actively managed accounts (80 percent in 2012 80 parcent n 2011
and B5 parcent m 2010)

f  Pnmardy Undad Kingdom Japan and kish government-tssued bonds

{g) Pnmardy morigage backsd sacuritiga

) Primarily funds nvested by managers that hava a global manda‘e with the flaxbiy 1o
sliocate caprial broadly across a wide range of asset classes and sirategies including
but not Imited to equities fixext mcome, commodities nterest rate futures currencies
and other secunties to outperionm an egreed upon benchmark with specific return and
vola'iity targets

) Prmarky ivestments in iouad commocdhity fu*una contracts and prvate anergy funds

{) Primarity cash and cash equvalents

Equities that are valued using quoted pnces are valued at the
published market pricas Equities Ina common collective trust or a
registered Invastment company that are valued using significant other
observable inputs ara valuad at the net asset valus (NAV) prowided by
the fund administrator The NAV 1s based on the value of the underly-
Ing assets owned by the fund minus its llabilities Fted incormne
securilies that are valued using significant other observable inputs
are valued at pnces obtained from independent financial serice
industry-recognized vendors  Absolute return funds and commodities
are valued at the NAV providad by the fund administrator Private
energy funds are valued at the NAV provided by the partnership on a
one-quarter lag adjusted for known cash flows and significant events
through the reperting date

The following table summanzes the change in the vatue of assets that
are measured using significant unobservable inputs

{daoitars m muthons) 2012 2011 20140
January 1 $636 8501 $530
Transfers in {out of) from other categones 2 1) {37}
Actual return on plan assets

Assets on hand at year end 59 {14) a1

Assets sold dunng the year {4) {1} i2)
Purchases sales an settlements, nel 39 61 59
December 31 $732 8636 S50

The investment mix of equity securities, fixed ncome and other asset
allocation strategies 1s based upon achieving a deswed return, balanc-
ing hugher return, more volatile equity secunties, and lower return,

less volatile fixed incomse securiies Investment allocations are made
across a range of markets, ndustry sectors, capitalization sizes,

and i the case of fixed income secunties, matunties and credit quaity
The plans do not directly hold any secunttes of Abbott There are no
known significant concentrations of nsk in the plans assets Abboit's
medical and dental plans” assets are Invested in a similar mix as the
pensicn plan assets
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The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown above 1s based on
management’s expectations of long-term average rates of eturn to be
achieved by the underlying investment portfolios In establishing this
assumption, management considers histoncal and expected returns
for the asse! classes in which the plans are invested, as well as current
aconomic and capital market condiions

Abbott funds its domestic pension plans according to IRS funding
Imitations International penslon plans are funded according to similar
regulations Abbott funded $379 millon in 2012, $394 milion in 2011
and $525 miilion In 2010 to defined pension plans Abbott expects
penslon funding for its main domestic pension plan of $170 millon in
2013 The projected decrease reflects the separation of AbbVie from
Abbott and the transier of certaln assats and babilities to AbbVie

Total baneft payments expected to be paid to participants, gnvng
effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott, which includes
payments funded from company assets as wall as paid from the
plans, are as follows

Defined Medical and
(doflars i mikons) Benefit Plans Dental Plans
2013 $ 173 $ 78
2014 183 B8O
2015 197 a3
20186 211 87
2017 224 80
2018to 2022 1,367 510

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan 1s the pnncipal defined contnbution
plan Abbolt's contnbutions to this plan were $150 millon in 2012,
$151 million in 2011 and $147 million in 2010

Abbott provides certain other post-employmant benafits, pnmary
salary continuation plans, to qualfying domestic employees, and
accrues for the related cost over the service lves of the employeas

Note 5 — Taxes on Earnings

Taxes on earnings reflect the annual effective rates, including charges
for interast and penalhes  Deferred income taxes reflect the tax conse-
quences on future years of differences between the tax basas of assets
and liabilties and therr financial reporting amounts  Tha $620 million
domestic loss before taxes in 2012 includes Abbott's $1 35 billion net
loss on the earty extinguishment of debt and approximately $395 mulkon
of separation related expenses U S income taxes are provided on
those earnings of foreign subsidianes which are intended to be remitted
to the parent company Abbott does not record deferred income taxes
on eamings reinvested Indefinitely in foreign subsidignes Undistnbieted
earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign subsidianes as working capital
and plant and equipment aggregated $40 O billlon at Decemnber 31,
2012 It s not praciicabls to determine the amount of deferred income
taxes not provided on these earnings nthe U S| Abbott's federal
income tax returns through 2009 are settled except for one item, and
tha income tax returns for years after 2009 are open There are numer-
aus othar mecome tax junsdictions for which tax mturns are not yet
settied, none of which are ndvdually significant Reserves for interest
and penallies are not significant
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Earnings before taxes, and the related provisions for taxes on
earnings, were &s follows

{dofiars i mullions)

Earnings Bafore Taxas 2012 2011 2010
Demestic $ {620) $ 364 $ (275)
Foralgn 6883 4,835 5,888
Total $6,263 $5,109 $5.713
Taxes on Earmings 2012 2011 2010
Current

Domaestic $ 188 $ (586) $ 1,462
Forelgn 1,230 1,187 835
Total cumrent 1,428 601 2,297
Defarred

Domestic (483) 162 {1,068)
Foreign (B45) {293 {142)
Total deferred (1.128) {131} (1.210)
Total $ 300 S 470 $ 1,087

Differsncos between the effsctive ncome tax rate and the U S
statutory tax rate wers as follows

2012 201 2010
Statutory tax rate on earnings 35 0% 35 0% 35 0%
Benafit of lower forelgn lax rates
and tax exemplions (24 9) {22 9) (19 4}
Resolution of certain tax positions
pertalning to prior years {6 5) (112) —
Effact of non deduciibla Itigation reserva 06 21 -
State taxes netl of federa) benelit 01 04) 04
All other net 05 @6 30
Effactive tax rate on earnings 48% 290% 19 0%

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, total deferred tax assets
ware 7 4 bilion, $6 3 bilon and $6 1 bilion, respectively, and total
deferred tax liabiitles were $2 6 bilhon, $2 9 bilkon and $3 0 bdlion,
respechively Abbott has meurmed losses in a foreign junsdiction where
realization of the future economic benefit 1s so remots that the benafit
18 not reflected as a deferred tax asset Valuation allowances for
racorded deferred tax assets were not significant The tax effact of
the differences that giva nise to deferred tax assets and liabilies

waore as follows

(ciollars iy mullions) 2012 2011 2010
Compensation and employes benefils $1.936 $ 1,658 $1327
Trade recevable reserves 587 492 525
Inventory reservas 21 212 293
Daferred intercompany profit 1095 711 255
State mcoma taxes 197 227 233
Depreciation (75} (164) (64)

Acquired In process research and
development and other accruals and

reserves not currently deductible 3278 2 886 3401
Other prmarily the excess of book

basis over tax basis of mtangible assets (2447 {2,636) (2,805)
Total 54752 $ 3,366 $ 3,065
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The following table summanzes the gross amounts of unrecognized
tax benafits without regard 10 reduction in tax liabilties or additions to
deferred tax assets and liabllities if such unrecognized tax benefils
ware settled

{dollars i mufons) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 $2,123 $2724 2,172

Increase due to curmrent year tax positions 673 588 835
Increase due to prior year tax positions 62 282 171

Decrease due to prior year tax positions (438) 824) (04)
Sattlemenis {163) 847) (160}
Decamber 31 32,257 $2,123 $2,724

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate is approximately $2 O bilhon Abbott
believes that it s reasonably possible that the recorded amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by $550 milion to $650 milion,
mncluding cash adjustments, within the next twetve months as a result of
concluding vanous domestc and international tax matters

Note 6 — Segment and Geographic Area information

Abbott’s pnncipal business is the discovery, development, mantudacture
and sale of a broad ine of haalth care products Abbott's products are
generally sold directly 1o retallers, wholesalers, hospitals, health care
faclities, laboratones, physiclans' offices and governmant agencies
{hroughout the world  Effective January 1, 2012, certain international
oparations were transferred from the Established Pharmaceutical
Products segment to the Propretary Pharmaceutical Products segment
The segment information below has been adjusted to reflect this reorga-
nization Abbott's reportable segments are as follows

Propristary Pharmaceutical Products —Worldwide sales of a broad line
of propriatary pharmaceutical products

Established Pharmaceutical Products — International sales of a broad
Iina of branded genenc phamaceulical products

Nuiritional Products —Worldwide sales of a broad line of adult and
pediatnc nutntional products

Dragnostic Products—~-Worldwide sales of diagnostic systems and
tasts for blood banks, hospials, commercial laboratones and after-
nate-care testing sites For segment reporting purposes, the Core
Laboratones Diagnostics, Molecular Diagnostics, Point of Care and
Ibis diagnostic dvsions are aggregated and reported as the Diagnostic
Products sagment

Vascular Products —Worldwide sales of coronary, endovascular,
structural heart, vessel closure and other medical device products

Non-reportable segments includs the Diabetes Care and Medical
Optics segments

Abbott's undertying accounting records are maintained on a legal entity
basis for govermnment and public reporting requirements Segment
disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with internal man-
agement reporting Intersegment transfers of inventory are recorded at
standard cosi and are not 2 measure of segment operating earmngs
The cost of some corporate functions and the cost of certain
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employee benefits are charged to segments at predetermined rates
that approximate cost Remalning costs, if any, are not allocated to
segments For acquisihons pror to 2008, substantially all intangible
assels and related amortization are not allocated to segments In addi-
ton, no Intangible assets or related amaortization are allocated to the

Established Pharmaceutical Products segment The following segment
Information has been prepared in accordance with the internal
accounting policies of Abbott, as descnbed above, and are nol pre-
sented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principlas
applied to the consolidated financial statements

Net Sales o Operating Depreciation Additions to

{doliars mn mufions) External Customaers {g) Earnings {a) and Amortization Long-term Assats Total Assets

2012 2011 2010 2012 20011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Propnetary
Pharmaceuticals $18,012 $17,080 $15380 8§ 79485 7202 96502 § 6228 639 § 553 5 256 $ 168 $2,779  $12,026 $10.974 $11.421
Established
Phamaceuticals (b} 5121 5355 4461 1237 1,254 938 56 169 148 237 183 2,804 5704 65986 6730
Nutritronals 8471 6006 5532 1,019 787 777 191 183 177 458 205 183 3,583 3241 3,244
Diagnostics 4,282 4,128 3,794 804 766 559 315 339 244 349 409 319 3807 3,420 3462
Vascultar 3,071 3333 3,194 802 880 910 185 233 252 69 148 528 530 5272 5390
Total Reportable
Segments 36,967 35900 32,370 $11,810510,989 $9,776 $1478 $1,563 $1,374  $1,369 $1 113 $6,503  $30 521 $20,802 $30,247
Qther 2,907 2951 2,797
Net Sales $39,874 $38,851 $35,167

a} Net sales and operatng earnings wera unfavorably afiectad by the relatively stronger U'S dollar i1 2012 and wera [avorably affectad by the relatively woaker L S dollar n 2011 and 2010
{b) Adduons to long term assets in 2010 for the Established Pharmaceucal Products segment mckade goocwil of $2 767

(doltars in miftons) 2012 2011 2010 Net Sales to
Total Reporiable Segment {cloliars i mithons) External Custormers (d) tong term Assels
Cperating Earnings $11910 $10999 $9.776 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Comorate functions and United States 516784 316014 $15194 $15244 $15,867 $16,769
benefit plans costs 651) {629} {558) Japan 2441 2342 2,025 1,168 1,225 1172
Non-reporiable segments 338 276 139 Gemmany 1140 1,759 1,846 8173 5808 5950
Nst interest expanse {513) (445) {448) Tha Matherlands 1,883 2108 2,001 532 462 312
Net loss on extinguishment of dabt (1,351} - - Italy 1127 1,189 1,144 222 229 242
Acqured in process and Canada 1,253 1098 1,036 352 237 224
collaborations research France 1167 1,297 1,216 220 214 87
and development (288) 673) (313) Span 842 1063 1,086 314 293 291
Share-based compansation {433) {383) (387) United Kingdom 1,040 a7 asa 13458 1,273 1,272
Qther, net {c) (2,746) (4,046} (2,496) India 833 931 501 3,467 3160 3,791
Consoldated Earnings Before Taxes $ 6,263 $ 5,189 $5,713 All Other Countries 10555 10,079 8250 6874 7639 8,146
Consolidated $30,874 338851 $35167 $35,.912 $36 508 $38 258

{&} Other net for 2011 includes a charge of $1 500 rela'ed tc a praviously disciased
government invastigation Other net for 2012 2011 and 2010 neludes charges of
$1 309 3402 and $881 respactvaly for separa n ralated costs i 2012 and for cost
reduchon atives and misgea‘ion

{cfoftars wr miions) 2012 20 2010
Total Reportable Segment Assels $30,521 $20 902 $30 247
Cash, investments and restacied funds 15,448 8,476 7 826
Cusrent deferred income taxes 2,986 2,701 3,076
Non reportable segments 4,413 4173 5,385
Al other, net, primanly goodwill and

intangible assats not gllocated

to reponiable segments 13,867 15025 14 240
“Total Assets $67,235 560,277 $60,574
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Note 7 == Liigation and Environmental Matlers

Abbott has been idantified as a potentially rasponsible party for
investigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations in the United
States and Puerto Rico under federal and state remediation laws and
is invastigating potential contamination at a number of company-
owned locations Abbott has recorded an estimated cleanup cost for
each site for which managemaent beleves Abbott has a probable loss
exposure No individual site cleanup exposure 1s expected to exceed
$4 million, and the aggregate cleanup exposure 1s not expected lo
exceed $15 mithon

There are a number of patant disputes with third parties who claim
Abbott's products infringe their patents On February 21, 2012, the
United States Supreme Court dented Centocor inc s and New York
University's petition 1o review a February 2011 Federal Cireuit Court
of Appeals dscision reversing a $1 67 billon judgment in favor of
Centacor and New York University on a patent they claimed Abbott's
HUMIRA infrngsd  This deciston concludes the case

The United States Department of Justice, through the United States
Attorney for the Waestern Disincl of Virginia, and varnous state
Attorneys General nvestigated Abbott's sales and marketing actvities
for Depakote The government sought to determine whether any

of these actmties violated cvil and/or criminat laws, including the
Federal False Claims Act, the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, and the
Anti-Kickback Statute in connaction with Medicars and/or Madicaid
reimbursement to thurd parties The state Attorneys General offices
sought to determine whather any of these activities wiolated vanous
slata laws, including state consumer fraud/protection statutes

Abbott recorded charges of $1 5 bilion in the third quarter of 2041
and $100 million in the first quarter of 2012 related to cnal and criminal
claims ansing from this matter In May 2012, Abbott reached resclution
of all Depakote-related federal claims, Medicald-related clams with
49 states and the Distnct of Columbxa, and consumer protection
claims with 45 states and the District of Columbla In 2012, Abbott
paid approximately $1 6 billion for the settlement The payments were
matenal to Abbott's cash flows in 2012

Abbolt estimates the range of posstble loss for its legal proceadings
and erwironmental exposures to be from approxmately $70 miliion

to $100 milhon The recorded accrual balance at Decamber 31, 2012
for these proceedings and exposures was approximately $80 miflion
This accrual represents management's best estimate of probable loss,
as defined by FASB ASC No 450, "Contingenctes ” Within the next
yaar, legat proceedings may occur that may result In a change in the
estimated loss accrued by Abbott While it 1S not feastble to predict
the cutcome of all such procesdings and exposures with certainty,
management believes that ther uttimate dispogition should not have
a materal adverse effact on Abbott’s inancial position, cash flows,
or results of operations
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Note B — Incentive Stock Program

The 2008 Incentve Stock Program authonzes the granting of
nonqualfied stock options, replacement stock options, restncted
stock awards, restncled stock units, performance awards, foreign
bengfits and olher share based awards Stock options, replacement
stock options and restncted stock awards and unlis compnse the
maonty of benefits that hava been granted and are currantly outstand-
g under this program and a prior program In 2012, Abbott granted
1,931,213 stock options, 2,124,743 eplacement stock options,
1,134,062 restricted stock awards and 7,056,809 resincted stock
units under this program The purchasa price of shares under option
must be at lsast equal to the farr market vatue of the commeon stock
on the date of grant, and tha maximum term of an option 1s 10 years
Optons vest equally over three years except for replacement options,
which vast In six months Options granted before January 1, 2005
included a replacement feature Except for options autstanding that
have a replacement feature, options granted after December 31, 2004
do not includs a replacement feature When an employae tenders
mature shares to Abbott upon exercise of a stock option, a replace-
ment stock option may be granted equal to the amount of shares
tenclered Replacement oplions are granted at the then cument market
prce for a term thal expires on the date of the underlying option grant

Upon a change in control of Abbott, all outstanding stock options
bacome fully exercisable, and all terms and conditions of all restncted
stock awards and units are deemed salisfied Restricted stock awands
generally vest between 3 and 5 years and for restncted stock awards
that vest over 5 years, no more than one-third of the award vests In
any one year upon Abbott reaching a minimum return on equity target
Restnicled stock units vest over three years and upon vesting, the
recipient receves one share of Abbott stock for each vested restnctad
stock unit The aggregate farr market value of restricted stock awards
and units 1 recognized as expense over the service period Resincted
stock awards and settlement of vested restncted stock units are
1ssued out of treasury shares Abbott generally issues new shares

for exercises of stock options Abbott does not have a poticy of
purchastng its shares relating to its share-basad programs

At Decamber 31, 2012, approximately 155 million shares wera
reserved for future grants Subsequent to year-end, the reserve was
reduced by approximately 25 million shares for stock options and
restricted stock awards and units granted by the Board of Directors

In connection with the separation of Abbvia from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott employess, including those employees transfernng to
AbbVie, holding stock oplions or restncted stock awards of units as

of December 31, 2012 generally received one AbbVie stock option for
each Abbott stock option held and one AbbVie restncted stock award
or unit for sach Abbott award or unit hatd For Abbott stock eptions,
tha exercise pnce of an Abbott option was adjustad to reflect the effact
of the separation The per share data presented below has not bean
adjusted to reflect this adjustment on the per shars amounts
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The number of resincted stock awards and units outstanding and the
weighted-average grant-date far value at December 31, 2011 and
Dacember 31, 2012 was 14,698,595 and $50 29 and 15,508,416 and
$53 17, respectivaly The number of restricted stock awards and units,
and the weighted-average grant-date far valua, that were granted,

vested and lapsed dunng 2012 were 8,190,671 and $56 74, 6,774,145
and $51 32 and 608,705 and $52 32, respectively The far market value
of restncted stock awards and units vested in 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $385 millon, $237 milion and $203 milkon, respectivaly

Options Outstanding Exorcisable Options

Walghted Weaighted Weighted Waighted

Averaga Average Average Average

Exprcise Remaning Exercise Remaining

Shares Prica Life (Years} Shares Price Life (Years)

Decernber 31, 2011 85 439,279 $50 52 47 81,734,460 B0 51 45
Granted 4,055,958 60N
Exercised {40,923,624) 4973
Lapsed (380,717) 60 63

Decamber 31, 2012 48,190,894 $51 98 40 43,052,057 $51 36 37

The aggregate intrinsic value of optons outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2012 was $679 millon and $633 million, respectively
The total intnnsic value of options exercised In 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $528 milian, $84 milion and $77 million, respectively The lotal
unracognized compensation cost related to all share-based compen-
sation plans at December 31, 2012 amountad to approximately

$174 million, gving effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott,
which 1s expected to be recognized over the next three years

Total non-cash compensation expense charged against income in
2012, 2011 and 2010 for share-based plans totaled approximately
$433 million, $383 mullion and $385 million, respectvely, and the tax
benefit recognized was approximately $132 mlion, $1 16 milion and
$119 million, respectively Compensation cosl capitalized as part of
inventory 1s not significant

The far value of an option granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was

$6 80, $6 23, and $9 24, respectvely The far value of an option grant
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions

2012 2013 2010
Risk free intarest rate 12% 27% 29%
Average life of options (years) 60 60 80
Volatilty 21 0% 21 0% 22 0%
Dividend yield 38% 4 1% 32%

The nek-froe mterest rate 1s based on the rates avalable al the time of
the grant for zero-coupon U S government 1ssues with a remaining
term equal to the option's expected ife The average life of an opton 15
based on both histarical and projected exercise and lapsing data
Expaected volatiity 1s based on impled volatilities from traded options
on Abbott's stock and istoncal volatiity of Abbott's stock over the
expected Iife of the option Dividend yield 1s based on the options
exorcise price and annual dwvidend rate at the time of grant

a2

Note 9 = Debt and Lines of Crecit
The following 1s a summary of long-tem dabt at December 31

(dattars in mikons) 2012 2011 2010
5 15% Notes, due 2012 3 - $ - $ 1000
1 95% Yen Notes, due 2013 — 321 289
4 35% Notes due 2014 - 500 500
1 2% Notes, due 2015 (1) 3,500 - —
Vanable Rate Notes, dus 2015 (1} 500 - —
2 7% Notes, dua 2015 — 750 750
5 875% Notes due 2016 - 2000 2,000
1 75% Notes, due 2017 (1) 4,000 —_ -
5 6% Notes due 2017 - 1500 1,500
2 0% Notes due 2018 (1) 1 000 - -
5 125% Noles, due 2019 947 2 000 2,000
4 125% Notes due 2020 597 1,000 1,000
2 9% Notes, dua 2022 (1) 3100 - —
6 15% Notes due 2037 547 1000 1 000
6 0% Nptes, due 2039 515 1,000 1,000
5 3% Notes due 2040 694 1250 1250
4 4% Notes, due 2042 (1) 2,600 - -
Other, mohuding falr valus adiustments

relating {0 interest rate hedge contracts

dasignated as far value hadges 85 719 225
Total, net of current matunties 18,085 12,040 12,524
Curmrent maturities of long-term debt 308 1027 2,045
Totat carmyng amount $18 304 $13 067 $14,569

(1) These no*es were Issued by AbbVir Inc iy November 2012 Wi h the separn on of
Abbvie on January 1 2013 Abbo*t no longer has any obSga ons rela‘ed to this deb

In 2012, Abbott redeemed $7 7 bilon of its outstanding notes  Abbott
incurrad a cost of $1 35 bitlon to extinguish this debt, nel of gains
from the unwinding of Interest rate swaps related to the debt In 2012,
AbbVie Inc , a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, ssued $14 7 billion
of long-term debt wath matunties ranging from 3 10 30 years The debt
1ssued by AbbVie Inc was guarantead by Abbott with the guarantee
axpinng when AbbVie Inc separated from Abbott on January 1, 2013

Atter the saparation of AbbVie from Abbotl on January 1, 2013, princi-
pal payments required on long-term dabt outstanding and retained by
Abbott are $309 million in 2013 and $3 3 bilion In 2019 and thereafter
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At December 31, 2012, Abbolt's long-term debt raling was A+ by
Standard & Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody’s Investors Service
In the third quarter 2012, Abbott replaced unused lines of credd of

$3 0 billon and $3 7 bilon that were to expire in October 2012 and in
2013, respectivaly, with two five-year credit faciities totaling $7 0 bilion
that support commercial paper borowing arrangements One of the
credit facilties totaling $2 0 bitkon will support AbbVie commercial paper
borrowings after separatxon and expired for Abbott at the separation of
AbbVie from Abibott on January 1, 2013 Abbott's weighted-average
interest rate on short-term borowings was O 4% at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010

Note 10 — Busmess Combinations, Technolagy Acquisitions
und Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Piramal Healthcare Limited’s
Healthcare Solutions business, a leader in the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 billon, in cash, plus addittonal payrments of $400 mil-
flon annually in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abboll recorded a

$1 6 bilion lability for the present value of the additonal payments at
the acquistion date The acquisition was financed with cash The allo-
cation of the fair value of the acquisition resutted in the recording of
$2 7 billon of deductible acquired Intangible assets and $1 0 bilion

of deductible goodwall Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanty of
trade names, customer retationships and associated nghts and are
amortized over an average of 19 years

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay's pharmaceuticals business
(Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximatsly $6 1 billon, in cash, plus
addiional payments of up 1o EUR 100 million per year if certain sales
milestones are met in 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $290 millon was recorded The acquisttion of Solvay
Pharmaceuticals provided Abbott with a largs and complementary
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott’s presence
In key global emerging markets Abbott acquired control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
operations are included in these financlal statements beginning on

that data Net sales for the acquirad operations for 2010 were approx-
mately $3 1 bilhon Pretax koss of the acquired operations, including
acquisition, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $395 millon The acquisiion was funded with cash and
short-tarm investments The allocation of the far value of the acquisi-
tion resulted n the recording of $2 2 billion of non-deductible goodwall,
$4 1 billion of non-deductible intangible essets, $500 million of non-
deductible acquired in-process research and development assets, net
tangible assets of $700 millon and deferred iIncome taxes of $1 1 bil-
lion Acquired intangible assels consist pnmanly of product nghts for
currently marketed products and are amortized over 2 {o 14 years
{average of 11 years} Acquired In-process research and development
projects are accounted for as indefinite lived intangible assets unt reg-
ulatory approval or discontnuation The net tangible assets acquired
consist pnmanty of trade accounts recevable of approximatsly $675 mil-
lion, Inventory of approximately $390 miion, propery and equipment
of approximately $725 millon, net of assumed labilities, pnmanly trade
accounts payabla, accrued compensation and other liabilities

Had the acquisttion of Solvay Pharmaceuticals taken ptace on
January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diluted earnings per share for 2010 would have boen $35 8 billion,
$4 6 bilton and $2 96, respactively The pre forma information includes
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adjustrnents for amorhization of intangible assets and falr value adjust-
ments to acquisition-date inventory as well as acquisthion, integration
and restructunng expenses The pro forma financial information 1s not
necessanly ndicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been affected on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquired STARUIMS Technologies for approxi-
mately $100 millon, in cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, prowding
Abbott with Isading products and expertise to build its position in
laboratory informatics A substantial porlion of the farr value of the
acquistion has been allocated to goodwill and amortizabla intangible
assels In Apnil 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of Facet
Biotech Carporation for approximately $430 milllon, in cash, net of
cash held by Facet The acquisition enhanced Abbott's early- and
mid-stage pharmaceutical pipeline, Including a biolegic for multiple
sclerosts and compounds that complament Abbott's oncology
program A substantial porticn of the fair value of the acquisition was
allocated to acquired in-process research and development that 1s
accounted for as an indefinite-Ived intangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisittons taken place on January 1 of the prewvious year, consoll-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly different
from reporied amounts

Abbolit’s Poprietary Pharmaceutical Products segment has entered into
vanous collaboration research and development agreements In 2012,
Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under developmant for the prevention
of acute kdney injury associated with major cardiac surgery in pabents
at increased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott recorded a
charga to acquired in-process and collaborations research and develop-
mart of $110 milion tn addition, in 2012, Abbott entered into a global
collaboration to develop and commercialize an oral, next-generation
JAK1 nhibitor in Phase |l development with the potential to treat multiple
autoimmune diseases, and as a result of this transaction Abbott
recorded a charge 1o acquired In-process and collaborations research
and development of $150 millon Additonal payments of appraximately
$1 2 biflon could be required for the achieverment of certaln develop-
mant, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement
Under another collaboration, Abbott was granted the nghts in 2012 to
utiize up to three antibody-drug conjugate compounds and Abbott
recorded a charge to acqurred in-process and collaborations research
and development of $28 mifion Additional payments of approxmatety
$220 million for each lcensed compound could be required for the
achievement of cerlain development, regulatory and commercial mile-
stones under this agreement In connection with the acqusition of
Solvay Pharmaceuticals, the achisvement of a certain sales milestone
resulted In a payment of approximately $134 millon in the first quarter
of 2012 for which a lability was praviously establshed

Dunng 2010 and 2011, Abbelt entered into a senes of transactions

with Reata Pharmaceuticals which included (1) a collaboration agree-
mant for tha joint development and commercialization of second
ganaration oral antioxidant inflammation modulators rasulting m a charge
to acquired n-process and collaborations research and development of
400 milkon 1n 2011, {2) an agreement to acquire licensing nghts outstde
the U S, excluding certan Asian markets, 1o bardoxolonae methyl, a
product in development for the treatment of chronic kidney disease
resulting in a charge to acaured In process and collaborations research
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and davalopment of $238 milkon In 2010 and (3) the acquisition of
equity interests in Reata of $62 milkon each in 2011 and 2010 In 2011,
cartain milestones were achieved in the development for the treatment
of chronlc kidney disease and charges to acquired in-process and col-
laboratons research and development of $188 mikon were recorded

in the first quarter of 2012, $50 milllon of research and development
axpense was recorded related to the achievarnent of a climical davelop-
ment milastone under the license agreement The licensea agreement
requires additional payments of up to $150 milkon If certain developmant
and regulatory milestones associated with the chronic kadney diseass
compourd ara achieved

On October 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that it Is discontinuing
the Phass Il clinical study for bardoxoione methyl for chromic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to delermine whether there is an appropnate path forward for
the davelopment of bardoxolone methyl in chrome kedney disease or
other ndications In the fourth guarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 milion for the Impairment of the equity
investmant in Reata

tn 2011, Abboti entered into an agreement with Biotest AG to devalop
and commercialze a freatrnent for sheumalod arthnlis and psonasis
resuling in a charge to acquied in-process and collaborations
research and development of $85 milion Additional payments totaling
up to $395 million based on projected regulatory approval tmelines
could be requrred for the achievemant of certain development, regula-
tory and commercial milestones under this agreement In 2010, Abbaott
entered into an agreemant with Neurocrine Biosciences to develop
and commaercialize a product for the treatment of endometnosis result-
ing in a charge to acquired in-precess and coltaborations research

and development of $75 millon Additional payments of approximately
$500 milion could be required for the achievement of certain develop-
mant, regulatory and commerctal milestones under this agreement

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Abbott recorded goodwil of approximately $3 4 biion in 2010 related
to the acquisitions of Solvay’s pharmaceuticals business, Piramal
Healthcare Limited's Healthcare Solutions business, Facet Biotech and
STARLIMS Technologies Goodwill related to the Solvay, Piramal and
Facat acquisitions was allocated to the pharmaceutical products seg-
ments In addition, in 2010, Abbott paid $250 million to Boston
ScioMific as a result of the approval to market the Xience V drug-elut-
ing stent in Japan, resutting In an increase in goodwill in ihe Vascular
Products segment Foreign currency translation and other adjustments
increased (decreased) goodwill in 2012, 2011 and 2010 by $69 mil-
lion, ${225) milion and ${B79) millan, respectivaly The amount of
goodwill related to reporiable sagments at December 31, 2012 was
$6 3 billion for the Proprietary Pharmaceubical Products segment,

$3 © billion for the Established Pharmaceutical Products segment,
$209 mition for the Nutriional Products segment, $385 mifion for the
Dagnosiic Products segment, and $2 7 bilion for the Vascular
Products segment There were no significant reductions of goodwilt
relating to impairmants or disposal of all or a portion of a business

The gross amount of amartizable intangible assels, pnmanly product
nghts and technolegy was $17 6 bilion, $17 5 billon and $17 3 bilhon
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as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and accumu-
lated amortization was $9 7 bulion, $8 3 billon and $6 5 billion as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely Indefinite-ved
intangibla assets, which relate to in-process research and davalop-
rment acquired 1n a business combination, were approximately $691
milion, $814 million and $1 4 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively In 2012 and 2011, Abbott recorded impalment
charges of $82 million and $174 million, respectively, far certam
research and development assels due to changes in the projacted
development and regulatory imelines for the projects The 2012
charge relates to a non reporiable segment and in 2011, $125 millon
related 1o a non-reportable segment and $49 millon related to the
Other category in Abbott's segment reporting Discounted cash flow
analysts was used to analyze far value and tha charges are included in
rasearch and development expenses The astimated annual amortiza-
tion expense for intangible assets recorded at December 31, 2012,
adjusted for the separation of AbbVie from Abbaott, 1s approximately
$800 million in 2013, $675 millien n 2014, $590 million in 2015,

$605 million in 2016 and $565 million in 2017 intangible asset
amortization 1s Included i Cost of products sold 1n the consolidated
statement of earnings Amartizable intangible assets are amortized
aver 2 to 30 vears (averags 11 years)

Note 12 — Restructurning Plans

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans to streamiine various
commercial operatons i order 10 reduce costs and Improve efficien-
cies in Abbott's core diagnostics, established pharmaceutical and
nutrtionals businesses Abbott recorded employes related severance
charges of approximately $167 mition in 2012 Additional charges of
approximately $22 milion were also recorded in 2012, pnmarnly for
asset impairments Approximatety $70 million is recorded n Cost of
products soid and approximately $119 mihon as Selling, general and
adrminustrative expense As of December 31, 2012, no significant cash
payments have been made relating to these actions

In 2011 and pnor years, Abbott management approved plans to
reabign Its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and development operations in order to reduce costs In
2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approximately $194 mil-
lon and $56 millen, respectively, reflecing the imparrment of
manufactunng faciities and other assets, employae severance and
other related charges Approximately $76 millon in 2011 1s classified
as Cost of products sold, $69 millon as Research and development
and $49 million as Seling, general and administrative Approxsmatety
$56 rmllion 10 2010 15 classified as Cost of products sold The following
surmmanzes the actmty for these restructunngs

{dallars n mihons}

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 $ 145
2010 restructunng charges 56
Payments impaimmants arx other adjusiments {124)
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 77
2011 rgstructunng charges 194
Payments impaments and other adjustments {94)
Accrued balance at December 31 2011 177
Payments and other adjustments {¢8)
Accrued balanca at December 31, 2012 $ 129
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An addional $110 mitton, $25 milion and $13 miflion were racordad
n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmanly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved restructuring plans
pnmarly related to the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals busi-
ness These plans streamiine operations, improve efficiencies and
reduce costs in certain Solvay sites and functions as welt as in cerlain
Abbott and Solvay commercial organizations 1n various countries

In 2012, Abbott recorded a chargs of approximatety $150 mullion for
employes severance and contractual obligations, pnmarily related o
the exit from a research and development facility Approximately

$142 milhon 1s recordad as Research and development and $8 million
as Salling, general and administratve In 2010, Abbott recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Seling, general and administrative of approxmately $99 millon,

$152 milion and $272 million, respectively The following summanzes
the activity for these restructunngs

(dollars m mulions)

2010 restructuring charge $523
Payments, impaiments and other adjustments {113)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 410
Paymants and other adjustments (302)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 108
Restructuring charges 150
Payments and other adustments {143)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 S115

An addtional $38 mulion, $102 mution and $12 millon were recorded
I 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmanly for additional employee severance and accelerated
depreclation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbolt management approved plans to streamiing
globa! manufaciunng aperations, reduce overall costs, and improve
afficlencies 1n Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge

of $28 million was recorded in Cost of products sold The following
summarzes the acinaty for these resiructunngs

(doliars n mitkans)

Accrued batance at January 1, 2010 $98
Payments and other adustments {10)
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 88
2011 restructwing charge 28
Payments and olher adustrments @37
Accrued balance al December 31 2011 79
Paymants and other adjustments {23)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 $56

In addition, charges of approximately $16 millon, $42 milion and $60
million wers racorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmanly for acceler-
ated depreciation and product transfer costs
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Note 13 — Quarterly Resulls {Unaudited}

{dokars i miffons excepl per share dala) 2012 20m 2010
Firsl Quarter

Nat Sales $9,456 6 $9,040 9 $7.608 4
Gross Profit 57317 51819 4,363 2
Ngt Eammings 1,2421 8638 1,003 0
Basic Eamings Per Common Share (a) 79 56 65
Diuted Earnings Par Common Share (a) 78 55 64
Market Pnca Per Share High 6149 49 45 66 79
Market Prico Per Sham-Low 5396 45 07 52 21
Second Quarter

Net Sales £$0,807 1 $96163 $8,826 0
Gross Profit 61698 57458 5,2821
Net Earnings 1,7246 19428 1,201 7
Baslic Earnings Per Commen Share (8} 109 124 83
Diluted Earnings Par Commion Share (a) 108 123 83
Market Prica Per Share High 64 47 5424 5325
Market Price Per Share Low 59 04 49 05 45 26
Third Quaner

Net Sales $07733 $9.816 7 $8 6745
Gross Profit 6,0752 5843 4 48334
Net Earnings 1,942 8 32 BaO T
Basit Esmings Per Common Share {a} 122 19 58
Dituted Eamings Per Common Share (g) 121 19 57
Market Pnce Per Share-High 7041 53 60 52 86
Markal Price Per Share-1 ow 63 51 46 29 44 59
Fourth Quarter

Net Sales $10,8369 $10377 4 $9,967 8
Gross Profit 87775 65306 5,922 8
Net Eamings 1,053 4 168187 1,440 8
Basic Eamings Per Common Share {a) 66 103 93
Diluted Earnings Per Commoen Share () 66 102 a2
Market Price Per Share High 72 47 56 44 5375
Markol Price Per Shara Low 62 62 48 96 46 03

{a) The sum of the quarlers basic earnigs per share for 2011 and 2010 and diuted eamings
per share for 2012 and 2011 go nat add 1o tha full year earnmgs per share amounts due 10
oundng
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Management Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

The management of Abbott Laboratories 15 responsible for establishing
and maintamng adequate internal control over financial reporting Abbolt's
internal control system was designed to provde reasonable assurance 1o
the company's managemant and board of direciors regarding the prep-
araton and fair presentation of published financial statements

All iInternal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent imitatons  Theraforg, sven thase systems determined to
be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
1o financtal statement preparation and presentation

Abboll’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company's
intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012

In making this assessment, it used the crteria set forth in Internal
Control — integrated Framework Issued by the Committee of Sponsonng
COrganizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our assessment,
we believe that, as of December 31, 2012, the company’s intemal contral
over financial reporing was effective bagsed on those cnlena

Abbott's ndependent registered public accounting firm has 1ssued an
auckt report on ther assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s
intemal control over financial reporting  This pont appears on page 47

Mies D White
Charrman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas G Freyman
Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Otficer

Greg W Linder
Vice Prasident and Controller

February 15, 2013
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratones

Wae have audied the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Abbott Laboratonas and subsldianes {the “Company”™) as of
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the related consolidated
statemants of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders'
Investment, and cash flows for the yaars then ended These financial
stalements are the responsibility of the Company's management
Qur responsibilty is to express an opinion on these financtal
statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uniled States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtamn reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
matenal misstatement An audit includas examining, on a test basis,
evidance supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting prnciples
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basts for our opinion

In our apinion, such consolidated financial statements present tairly,
in all matenal respects, the inancial posttion of the Company as

of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the results of its
operations and 1ts cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amerca

As discussad In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,

on January 1, 2013, the Company distributed all of the outstanding
shares of AbbVie Inc , which encompasses the Company’s
research-based pharmaceuticals business, to the Company's share-
halders As also discussed in Nate 1, in 2011 tha Company changed
the year end of its foreign subsidianes from a Novembaer 30 fiscal year
end to a December 31 calandar year end

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the cntena established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of
the Treadway Commussion and our report dated February 15, 2013
exprassed an unquakfied opmton on the Campany’s internal control
over financial reporting

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 15, 2013

7o the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratories

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Abbott
Laboratones and subsidianes {the "Company”"} as of December 31,
2012, based on cniena established in internal Control — Integraled
Framework 1ssued by the Gommittee of Sponsonng Organizations of
the Treadway Commussion The Company's management 1s rasponsi-
ble for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessmant of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Conirol aver Financial Reporting Our responsibility 1s to
express an opirvon on the Company's internal control aver financial
reporting based on our audtt

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Gompany Accounting Oversight Beard (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether effectwe internal control over financial
reporting was mantained in all matenal respects Our audit included
obialning an understanding of Internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness exists, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as wo
considered necessary In the cicumstances We believe that our audit
provides a reasenable basis for our opinion

A company's intemal control over financial reporting 1s a process
designed by, ar under the supervision of, the company's principal
executive and pnncipal financlal officers, or persons perfarming similar
functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, manage-
ment, and other parsonns! to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes in accordance with ganerally accepted
accounting pninciples A company's mternal control over financial
naportrg includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records thal, i reasonable detall, accurately and farly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necassary to permit preparation of financiat statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that receipts and
axpendiures of the company are being made only n accordance with
authonzations of management and directors of the company, and

{3) prowde reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthonzed acqurstion, use, or dispasition of the company s
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent imitations of intarnal control over financal
reporting, nctuding the possibility of collusion or iImproper manage-
ment ovemde of controls, materal misstatements due to error or fraud
may not be preventad or detected on a imely basis Also, projections
of any evaluaton of the effectiveness of the internal control over finan-
cial raporting to future periods are subject to the nsk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes n conditions, or that the
degres of compliance with the palicies or procedures may detenorate

in our apimon, the Company mantained, in all matenal respects, effec-
tive internal control over financlal reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the erteria astablished in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committes of Sponsonng Organizations

of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unifed States}, the consoli-
dated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended Dacember 31, 2012 and our report dated February 15, 2013
expresses an unqualfied opinion on those financial statements and
ncludes an explanatory paragraph regarding the distribution of the
sharas of AbbVie Inc to the Company’s sharehalders and the
Company's change to the year end of its foreign subsidianes

Deloitta & Touche LLP
Chicago, Hinois
February 15, 2013
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Financial Insttuments and Risk Management

Market Price Sensitive Investments

Abboit holds avallable-for-sale equity secunties from strategic
technology acquisitons The market value of these investments was
approximately $78 millon and $93 million as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respactively Abbott monitors these Investmants for other
than tamporary dechines In mariet value, and charges imparment
losses to ncome when an other than temporary decline in value
occurs A hypothetical 20 parcent decrease in the share pncas of
these investments would decrease thelr farr value at December 31,
2012 by approxmately 515 millon {A 20 percent decreasa is bebeved
to be a reasonably possible near-term change in share prices }

Non-Publicly Traded Equity Secunitics

Abbott hotds equity secunties from strategic technology acquisitions
that are not traded on public stock exchanges The carrying value of
these investments was approximately 5137 milhon and $224 million
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively No individual invest-
ment Is recorded at a value in excess of $30 millen Abbott monitors
these investments for other than temporary deciines n market value,
and charges imparment losses to Income when an other than tempo-
rary dechine in estimated value occurs

tnterest Rate Sensitive Financial Instruments

Al December 31, 2012 and 2011, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $9 5 billon and $6 8 bilion, respectvely, to manage
its exposure to changes n tha far value of debt The effect of these
hedges 15 to change the fixed interest rate to a vanable rate Abbott
does not use denvatwve financial instriments, such as interest rate
swaps, {0 manage its exposure to changes n mterest rates for its
investment secuntios At December 31, 2012, Abbott had $1 3 bilken
of domestic commercial paper outstanding with an average annual
wterest rate of 0 32% with an average remaining Ife of 17 days

The fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to $19 6 billon and $15 1 bilhon, respectively (average Interest
rates of 2 9%) with matunties through 2042 At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the far valus of current and long-term investment secunties

amounted to approxmately $4 6 billion and $1 7 billon, respectively
A hypothetical 100-basis point change in the interest rates would
not have a matanal effsct on cash flows, Income or market values
(A 100-basis point change I1s beliaved to be a reasonably possible
near-term change In rates )

Fareign Currency Sensitive Mnancial Instruments

Certan Abbott foreign subsidianes enter into forelgn currency forward
exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases by those
subsidianes whosa functional currancias are not the U S dollar These
contracts are dasignated as cash flow hedges of the vanability of the
cash flows due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
are marked-to-market with the resutting gamns or losses reflected In
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) Gains or losses

will be Included in Cost of products sold at the time the products are
sold, genwrally within the next twalve months At December 31, 2012
and 2011, Abbott held $1 6 billion of such contracts, which all mature
in the following calendar year

Abbott anters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to X
manage Its exposure to forelgn currency denominated iIntercompany I
loans and trade payables and third-party trade payables and receiv- |
ables The contracts are marked-to-market, and resulting gains or |
losses are reflacted in ncome and are generally ofisel by losses or gaing

on the foreign cumrency exposure being managed At December 31,

2012 and 2011, Abbott held $18 2 billon and $15 7 billion, respactively,

of such contracts, which mature tn tha next twelve months

ADboll has designated foreign denormingled short-term debt of
approximately $615 million and approximatety S680 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, as a hedge of the net
Investment in a foreign subsidiary Accordingly, changes in the far
value of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded
in Accumulated other comprahensive Income (loss), net of 1ax

The following table reflects the total foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Fair and Feir and

Weightad Carrying Weighted Canrylng

Avarage Value Averaga Value

Contract Exchange  Recelvable/ Contract Exchange  Recelvable/

(doifars in rmullions) Arncunt Rale {Payable} Amount Rate {Payable)

Recewve pnmarily U § Dollars

in exchangea for the following currencies

Euro $11,249 137 $ (4) $10,526 1329 8102

Bntish Pound 1318 1621 1 1,501 157 3

Japanese Yen 2624 812 9 2,458 803 3

Canadian Dollar 332 992 1 280 1026 2}

Al other curencles 4,168 N/A {33) 2544 N/A (1}

Total $19,792 ${26) $17,300 % 99
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Abbott’s revenues are denved primarlly from the sale of a broad line
of heatth care products under short-term recavable armangements
Patent protection and licenses, technological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbolt's products under a contract or by
a pharmacy banefit managar most mpact which products are sold,
piice controls, compettion and rebates most impact the net salling
prices of products, and forelgn currancy transtation impacts the
measurement of net sales and costs Abbott's primary products are
nutntonal products, prescription pharmaceutcals, diagnostic testing
products and vascular products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, ons in dvarsthed medtcal products and
the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomplish the
saparation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc ("AbbVie™)
for its research-based pharmaceuticals businass which consists
pnmarnily of Abbott's Propristary Pharmaceutical Products segment
On January 1, 2013, Abbott distnbuted all of the outsianding shares
of AbbVie to Abbott's sharsholders As a result of the distnbution,
AbbVie 15 now an independent company frading under the symbol
"ABBV" Baginning in the first quarter of 2013, the historical resuits
of the research-based pharmaceuticals business will be reflecied in
Abbalt’'s consolidated financlal statements as discontinued operatons

Prior to the separation of AbbVie, sales in international markets were
approximatety 60 percent of consolidated net sales Post-separation,
salas outside the U S are expected to compnse approximatety

70 percent of nel sales

Continued robust growth of HUMIRA in a broad range of indications,
the acquisitions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business {Solvay
Pharmaceuticals) and Piramal Healthcare Limited's Heatthcare
Solutions business, sales growth and margmn improvement in the
nutntional and diagnostics businesses, a government investigation
of Abbolt’s sales and marketing actmties related o Depakote,

and the challenging economic and fiscal environment in many
countries around the world have iImpacted Abbott's sales, costs
and financial position over the last three years

Pharmaceutical research and development was focused over the last
three years on tharapeutic areas that included immunology, oncology,
neurosclence, pan managemsent, hepatitis G {HCV), chronic kidney
disease and women's health In addition, Abbotl acquired the nghis to
vanous in-process pharmacautical research and development projects
including the devalopment of second-genaration oral antioxidant
inflammation modulators and an oral, next-generation JAK1 inhibitor
with the potental to treat muttiple autoimmune diseases

in 2003, Abbott began the worldwide launch of HUMIRA for rheumatord
arthritis, followed by launches for six additional indications in the U S
and eight additional mdications in the European Union HUMIRA's world-
wide sales increased to $9 3 bilkon n 2012 compared to $7 9 bilion

n 2011, and $6 5 bilionn 2010 Genenc compatition for TACor began
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Austenty measures implamented by
several European countnes reduced healtheare spending and afiected
pharmaceutical pricing over the last three years The U S proprietary
pharmaceuticals business was negatively affected by the 2010 U §
health care reform legislation which resulted in rebata changes begin-
ning in 2010 and the payment of an annual fee beginning in 2011
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In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay Pharmaceuticals which
provided Abboti with a large and complementary portfolio of pharma-
ceutlcal products and expanded Abbott's presence in key glabal
emerging markets The acquistion added approxmately $3 1 bilion to
Abbott's 2010 net sales, primanly outside the U S In September 2010,
Abbott compileted the acquisition of Piramal’'s Healthcare Solutions
business, propelling Abbott to market leadership in the Indian pharma-
ceutical market and further accelerating the company’s growth in
emerging markets Abbott recorded expense of approximately

$262 million 1n 2012, $345 milion in 2011 and $710 millon m 2010
ralated to the integration of the Solvay business and restructunng
plans to strearmiine operations, improve efficiencies and reduce costs
primarily in certain Solvay sitas and functions

In May 2012, Abbott reached resolubon of all Depakote-related
federal clams, Medicaid-related claims with 49 states and the Distnct
of Columbia, and consumer protection claims with 45 states and the
Distnct of Columbia Abbott recorded charges elated to this matter of
$1 5 bilhonin 2011 and $100 million in 2012, of which approximately
$1 6 bilkon was pad n 2012

In Abbott's woridwade nutntional products business, sales were posi-
tvely impacted by demographics such as an aging population and an
increasing rate of chronic diseass in developed markets and the nse

of a middle class in many emerging markets, as well as by numerous
new product introductions that lsveraged Abbott's strong brands

At the same time, manufactunng and distnbution process changes and
other cost reductions drove margin improvemants across the business

In Abbott's worldwide diagnostics business, margin improvement
continued to be a key focus and operaling margins increased from
14 7 percent of sales n 2010 to 18 7 parcent in 2012

Over the last three years, Abbott continued to build its Xience
drug-eluting stent franchiss with the receipt of approval to market
Xience Xpedition m vanous countnes, ncluding US approval in the
fourth guarter of 2012 as well as the launches of Xience nano and
Xence PRIME in the U 8§ 1n 2011, and Xrence PRIME and Xence V
in Japan in April 2012 and January 2010, respectively Xience, which
includes Xence V, PRIME, nano and Xpedition, ended 2012 as the
market-lsading drug eluting stent globally In 2011, the third party
distnbutor of the Promus product began transioning away from
the product and that supply agreement ended in 2012 The etfect
of the wincing down of the agreement will continue into the first
quarter of 2013

In 2010, the U S government passed health care reform legislation
which included an increase in Medicaid rebate rates and the extension
of the rebate to drugs provided through Medicald managed care orga-
nizations beginning in 2010 The legistation also imposed annual fees
which pharmaceutical manufacturers began paying n 2011 and medi-
cal davice companies will begin paying n 2013, as well as additonal
rebates related to the Madicare Part D “donut hole" beginning in 2011
In addition to a 2016 one Uime charge of approximately $60 million to
reduce deferred tax assets associated with retiree health care liabilities
refated to the Medicara Part D retiree drug subsidy, the legislation’s
negatve impact on Abbolt’'s parformance grew from more than

$200 million in 2010 to approximately $400 million per year in 2011
and 2012 The $400 milion annual impact included approximately
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$100 milion for the annual pharmaceutical manufacturer fee This fee
Is not tax-deductible and Is included In selling, general and administra-
tive expenses With the separation of Abbvie at the beginning of 2013,
Abbott na tongar sells pharmacautical products in the U S and there-
fora 1s no longer subject to the annual pharmaceutical fee or the
additional rebales Beginning in 2013, Abbott will begin paying the

2 3 parcent medical device tax under U S heatth care reform legisla-
tion This tax will be included in selling, general and administratve
expanses and the amount of the tax 1s not sxpecied 1o be matenal

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 bilion of
long-term debt and incurned a charge of $1 35 bilion related to the
early repayment, net of gains from the unwinding of interest rate
swaps related to the dabt Abbott's short- and long-term dabt totaled
$20 5 bilhon at Decembar 31, 2012 This balance includes $1 billon
of short-borrowings and $14 7 billlon of long-term deb! that was
1issued by AbbVie Inc 1n 2012 After the separation of AbbVie on
January 1, 2013, Abbott has no remamnng obhgations related to this
$15 7 bitkon of debt At December 31, 2012, Abbott's long-term debt
ratng was A+ by Standard and Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's
Investors Service Operating cash flows in excess of capital expend-
tures and cash dividends have partially funded acquisitions over the
last three years

In 2013, Abbott will focus on several key iniiatives In the nutntional
business, Abbott will continue to build its product portfolio with the
introduction of new sctence-based products, expand in high-growth
emerging markets and implement additional margen improvement ini-
tiatrves In the established pharmaceuticals business, which includes
International sales of branded genenc products, Abbott will continua
to focus on obtaining additipnal product approvals across numerous
countries and expanding sts presence in emerging markels Inthe
diagnostics business, Abbott will focus on the development of next-
ganaratian instrumants and other advanced technologies, expanslon
in emerging markets, and further improvements in the segment’s
operating margin In the vascular business, Abbott will continue to
focus on marketing products in the Xience and endovascutar fran-
chises, Increasing IMternational MitraClip sales, and cbtaning
regulatory review of the MilraClip device nthe U S as wel as further
clincal development of ABSORB, its bioresorbable vascular scaffald
(BVS) dewice and a further roll-out of ABSOFRB in numerous countnas
In Abbott’s other segments, Abbott will focus on developing differents-
ated technologies in higher growth markets

Cntical Accounting IPolicies

Sales Rebates - In 2012, approximately 56 percent of Abbott's con-
solidated gross revenues were subject to vanous forms of rebates and
allowances that Abbott recorded as reductions of revenues at the time
of sale Most of these rebates and allowances are in the Proprietary
Pharmaceutical Products segment and the Nutntional Products seg
ment Abbott provdes rebates to pharmacy benefit management
companigs, state agencies that administer the federal Medicad pro-
gram, nsurance comnpanies that administer Medicare drug plans, state
agencies that administer the Special Supplemental Nutntion Program
for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC), wholesalers, group purchas-
Ing organizations, and other government agencies and private entiies

Rebate amounts are usually based upon the volume of purchases
using contractual or statutory pnces for a product Factors used in the
rebate calculations includae the Identrfication of which products have
bean sold subyect to a rabate, which customer or govarnment agancy
price tarms apply, and the sstimated lag time between sale and pay-
ment of arebate Using histoncal trends, adjusted for current changes,
Abboit estimates the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and
records the liabllity as a reduction of gross sales when Abbott records
s sale of the product Setlement of the rebate generally occurs from
two to eight months after sale Abboft regulasly analyzes the histoncal
rabate trends and makes adjustments to rasarves for changes in
trends and tarms of rebate programs Rebates and chargebacks
charged agalnst gross sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
approximately $6 2 bition, $5 5 billon and $4 9 billon, respectvely, or
22 9 percent, 22 2 parcent and 23 1 percent, respectvely, based on
gross sales of approximately $26 9 billion, $24 8 bilion and $21 1 bil-
lion, respectvely, subject to rebate A one percentage point Increase
In the percentage of rebates to related gross sales would decrease
not sales by approximately $269 millon n 2012 Abbott considers

a ona-parcentage point Increase to be a reasonably Ikely iIncrease

in the percentage of rebates to related gross sales Other allowances
charged against gross sales wera approximately $542 million,

$409 millon and $415 million for cash discounts n 2042, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and $365 mition, $480 milion and $537 milion

for returns in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Cash discounts are
known within 15 to 30 days of sale, and therefore can be reliably
astimated Returns can be reliably estmated becausea Abbott's histon-
cal returns are low, and because sales returns terms and other sales
terms have rernained relatvely unchanged for several penods

Management analyzes the adequacy of ending rebate accrual bal-
ances sach guarter In the domest nuintional business, management
uses bothinternal and external data avalable to estimate the level

of inventory in the distnbution channel Managesment has access to
several large customers” inventory management data, and for other
customers, utilizes data from a third party that measures ime on the
retal shelf These sources allow management 1o make reliable esti-
mates of inventory in the distnbution channet Except for a transition
period before or after a change in the supplier for the WIC business
in a state, tnventory in the distnbution channe! does not vary substan-
tially Managemenit also estimates the states’ processing lag ime
based on claims data In addition, internal processing tme 1s a faclor
in estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state where the
sale 1s mada, which s the determining factor for the applicable price,
is raliably determinable Estimates am required for the amount of WIC
sales within each state where Abbott has the WIC busness External
data sourcas utiized for that estimate are participant data from the

U S Department of Agncutture {USDA), which adminssters the WIC
program, participant data from soma of the stales, and internally
administered marke! research The USDA has been making s data
avallablg for many years Internal data includes historical redemption
rates and pricing data At December 31, 2012, Abbott had WIiC
business in 22 stales
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In the domestic proprietary pharmaceutical business, the most
significant charges against gross sales are for Medicard and Medicare
Rebates, Pharmacy Benefit Manager Rebates and Wholesaler
Chargebacks in order to evaluate ihe adequaty o©f the ending accrual
balances, management uses both internal and external data to esti-
mate the leve! of inventory in the distnbution channet and the rebate
claims processing lag tme External data sounces used to estimate
the inventory in the distnbution channal Include inventory levels penod-
ically reported by wholesalers and third party market data purchased
by Abbott Management estimates the processing lag tme based on
penodic sampling of claims data To estimate the pnce rebate percent-
age, systems and calculations are usad to track sales by product by
customer and to estimate 1the contractual or statutory price Abbei's
systems and calculations have developed over time as rebates have
become more significant, and Abbott believes they are reliable

The following table 15 an analysis of the four largest rebate accruals,
which comprise approximately 70 percent of the consolidated rebate
provisions charged aganst revenues in 2012 Remaining rebate
provisions charged aganst gross sales are not significant in the
determination of operating earnings

Domastlc Proprietary
Pharmaceutical Products
Domestic Medicaid  Phamacy

Nutritionals and Benefil Wholesaler
wIC Medicare Manager Charge-
(doliars in milrons) Rebates Rebates Rsbatas backs
Balance at
January 1, 2010 $153 $ 352 $238 5 160
Provisions 616 899 841 1162
Payments (640) 617) B70) (1163)
Balance at
Becembar 31, 2010 129 834 410 159
Prowisions 575 985 83 1,361
Payments (568) {8oa) {735) {1,349
Balance at
Decamber 31, 2011 136 720 506 i
Prowslons 657 1077 830 1,645
Payments {870 (930) {840} {1 592)
Balance at
December 31, 2012 %123 5 807 % 496 8 224

Histoneally, adustments 1o pnor years' rebate accruals have not beon
matenal to net income Abbott smploys various techriques 1o venfy
the accuracy of claimg submitted to it, and where possible, works with
the organizations submitting clams to gain insight into changes that
might affect the rebate amounts For Medicaid, Medtcare and other
governmeni agency programs, the calculation of a rebate nvolves
Intarpretations of relgvant regulations, which are subject to challenge
or changa n interpratation
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income Taxes — Abbott operates In numerous countries where its
ncome {ax returns are subject to audits and adustments Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audit items ame often vary
complex, and the objectves of the government auditors can resuti in
a tax on the sama income in more than ang country Abbott employs
intemal and external tax professionals to minimize audit adpustment
amounts where possible In accordance with the accounting rulas
relating 1o the measurement of tax contingencies, in order to recogneze
an uncertain tax benefit, the taxpayer must be more likely than not of
sustaining the position, and the measurement of the benefit is calcu-
lated as the largast amount that 1s more than 50 percent lkely to

be realized upon resolution of the benefit Application of these rules
requires a significant amount of judgmant In the U S, Abbott's federal
incorme tax returns through 2009 are settled except for ane tem, and
the income fax returns for years after 2009 are open Abbott does

not record deferred ncome taxes on eamings einvested indefiniely

In foreign subsidiaries

Pensior and Post-Employment Benefits - Abbott offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care {C many of its employees
Abbott engages outside actuanes to assist in the determination of the
oblgations and costs under these programs Abbott must develop
long-term assumplions, the most significant of which are the health
care cost irend rates, discount rates and ihe expected return on plan
assets The discount rates used to measure hablities were determined
based on high-qualty hixed income sacunties that match the duration
of the expected retree benefits The health care cost trend rates repre-
sant Abbott’s expected annual rates of change in the cost of health
care benafits and 1s a forward projection of health care costs as of the
measurement dale A difference between the assumed rates and the
actual rates, which will not be known for decades, can be significant
in relation 1o the obligations and the annual cost recorded for these
programs Low asset returns due to poor market condiions and low
interest rates have significantly increased actuanal losses for these
plans At December 31, 2012, pretax net actuanal losses and pnor
service costs and {credits) recognized in Accumulated other compre-
hensive iIncome (loss) for Abbott’s defined benefit plans and medical
and dental plans were losses of $4 8 billon and $379 mllon, respec-
tvaly Actuanal losses and gans are amortized over the amaining
service attnbution penods of the employees under the comdor
method, In accordance with the rules for accounting for post-employ-
ment benefits Differences betwaen the expected long term return on
plan assets and the actual annual return are amortized over a five-year
penod Note 4 to the consolidated financal statemants descnbes the
impact of a one-percentage pomnt change in the heatth care cost trend
rate, however, thare can ba no cortamnty that a change would ba im-
ted to only one percentags pomt

Valuation of intangihle Assats — Abbott has acquired and continues

1o acquire signficant INtangble assets that Abbolt records at far value
Transactions involving the purchase or sale of intangible assetls occur
with some frequency batween companies in the health care field and
valuations are usually based on a discounted cash flow analysis The
discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the timing
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and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capltal, terminal
values and markst participants Each of these factors can significantly
affect the value of the intangible asset Abboll engages independent
valuation experts who review Abbaoll's cntical assumptions and
calculations for acquisitions of significant intangibles Abbott reviews
dehnite-ived intangible assets for impairment each quarter using an
undiscounted net cash flows appreach if the undiscounted cash
fiows of an Intangible asset are less than the canying value of an
Intangible asset, the intangible asset 15 wntten down to its falr value,
which 15 usually the discounted cash flow amount Where ¢ash flows
cannot be identfied for an indvidual asset, the review 1S applied at the
lowaest group level for which cash flows are entifiable Goodwil and
indefinte hved intangible assets, which relate to in-process research
and davelepment acquired In a business combination, are reviewed
for impairment annually or when an event that could result in an
impairment occurs At Decernber 31, 2012, goodwill and intangibles
amounted to $15 8 bihon and $8 6 billion, respectively, and amortiza-
tion expanse for intangible assets amounted to $1 4 billion in 2012
There were no impalrments of goodwali in 2012, 2011 or 2010 In 2012
and 2011, Abbott recorded imparrment charges of $82 millon and
$174 milion, respectively, for certain research and development assets
dua to changes in the projected development and regulatory timelines
for the projects

Litgation - Abbott accounts for ltigation losses in accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification No 450, “Contingencies "
Under ASC No 450, loss contingency provisions are recorded for
probable losses at management's best estimate of a loss, or when a
bast estmate cannot be made, a minimum loss contingency amount
15 recorded These estimates are often inihally developed substantially
earlier than the uttmate loss 1s known, and the estmates are refined
each accounting pericd as additional information becomas known
Accordingly, Abbott 1s often inrtially unable to develop a best estmate
af loss, and theratore the minimum amwount, which could be zero,

15 recorded As information becomes known, either the minimum loss
amount IS incraased, resulling in addiional loss provisions, or a best
sstimate can be made, also resulting In additional loss provisions
Occasionally, a best estimate amount 1s changed 1o a lower amount
when events result m an expectation of a more favorable outcome than
proviously expected Abbott estmates the range of possible loss to be
from approximataly $70 millon to $100 million for its legal proceedings
and environmental exposures Accruals of approximately $80 million
have been recorded at December 31, 2012 for these proceedings and
oxposures  These accruals represent managemant's best estmate of
probable loss, as defined by FASB ASC No 450, "Contingencias ™
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Resulls of Operations
Sales

Tha tfollowing table details the components of sales growth by report-
able segment for the last three years

Total Components of Change %

% Changa Price Volume  Exchange
Total Net Sales
2012vs 2011 26 17 as 29
2011 vs 2010 105 12 65 28
2010 vs 2009 143 01 132 12
Total US
2012 vs 2011 48 56 08 —
2011 vs 2010 54 44 10 —
2010 vs 2009 68 07 61 -
Total International
2012 vs 2011 11 10 IA] 50
2011 vs 2010 143 12) 106 490
2010vs 2009 207 ©8) 183 22
Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 55 45 37 27
2011 vs 2010 110 35 52 23
2010 vs 2009 136 03 127 06
Establshed Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012vs 2011 {44) 13 34 6 5)
2011 vs 2010 200 (17) 174 43
2010 vs 2009 517 03 491 29
Nutntiona! Products Segmaont
2012 vs 20114 77 45 42 (10
2011 vs 2010 86 30 36 20
2010 vs 2009 47 17 12 18
Dagnostic Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 40 (1 4) 87 33
2011 v 2010 88 (1 1) 65 34
2010vs 2009 60 01 43 16
Vascular Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 (79 52) 04 23
21 wvs 2010 44 4 3) 55 32
2010vs 2009 186 47} 223 10

Total Net Sales i 2012 reflect unit growth, parhaly offsel by the
impact of unfavorable foreign exchange The decréase in 2012
Vascular Products sales 1s partially due to the winding down of royalty
and supply agreements related to centain third-party products, includ-
ing Promus  Excluding this royalty and supply agreement revenue in
both penods and the unfavorable effect of exchange, Vascular
Products sales increased 3 4 percent In 2012 1n 2011 and 2010,

Total Net, Total U S, Total International, Propnetary Phamaceutical
Products segment and Established Pharmaceutical Products segment
sales reflect the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business on
February 15, 2010 and unit growth, while the relatively weaker U S
dollar favorably inpacted internationat sales across all segments

Total Net, Total International and Established Pharmaceutical Products
segment sales growth in 2011 also reflects the acquisttion of Prramal
Healthcare Limited's Healthcare Sofution business in September 2010
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A companson of significant product and product group sales 1S as
follows Percent changes are varsus the prior year and are basad on
unrounded numbers

Percant Percent Percant
{dollars 1 mithons) 2012 Change 2011 Change 2010 Change
Proprietary Phermaceuticals —
TotalUS
Proprietary sales $10,168 7 $9.455 8 $8744 12
HUMIRA 4,376 28 3427 19 2,872 14
TRILIPY TCor 1,088 20y 1372 1 1356 1
Maspan a1 n ar8 5 927 8
AndroGef 1,152 a3z 874 35 649 nm
Lupron 569 5 540 12 483 1)
Synthroid 551 6 522 16 451 2]
Craon 353 7 33z 35 246 n/m
Kalstra 280 {14) 326 (10) 363 (19}

Total International

Proprietary salos 7,854 3 7625 15 6645 16
HUMIRA 4,889 9 4505 23 3676 24
Kalatra 733 3 844 5 Baz @)
Lupron 231 (14 270 2 265 2

Total Estabhshed

Pharmaceuticals — 5,121 (4 5355 20 4461 52
Cianthrormyem 50 (9 551 [} 521 1
TaCor and Lipanti!

{fencfibrate) 202 5) 308 24 248 n‘m
Croon 308 4 296 58 187 n/m
Serc 205 12 233 30 180 n/m
Duphasion 259 16 223 64 136 nm
Synttword 105 1 103 9 95 19

Nutritionals —

U S Pediatric Nulntonals 1,445 14 1268 5 1,208 ")

Intemational Pediatric

Nutrittonals 2,080 8 1926 15 1,676 9

U'S Adult Nutntionals 1,452 6 1,368 2 1345 [+

International

Aduit Nutntionals 1,484 4 1427 13 1,768 15

Diagnostics —

Immunochemistry 3,279 4 3150 8 2,904 4

Vascutar Products (1) —

Xience 1589 3 1558 14 1,370 a0

Other Coronary

Products 508 {1 605 9 555 5

Endovascutar 452 1 449 9 414 5

n/m - Percen change 1s not mearagiul

{1} Orher Coronary Products mchade pemasiy gudewres and baloon cathe ers
Endovascular nclhudas vassel closure carciid sten's and other penpheral progucts
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Excluding the negative effect of exchange, Total International
Proprietary sales increasad 8 9 percent In 2012 In Propretasy
Pharmaceuticals, & ganenc version of ThCor entered the U S market
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Total Estabiished Pharmaceutical
Products sales decreased In 2012 due to the negative effect of
exchange and decreased sales of Clarithromycin and Serc due to,

n part, pncing pressuras in Europe, partlally offset by growth in
emerging markets Excludmg the effect of exchange, Total Established
Pharmaceutical Products sales increased 2 1 percent US Pediatnic
Nutntional sales in 2012 reflect markel share gans for Symac and
unit growth for PediaSure The increase in 2012 U S Adult Nutntional
sales reflects unit growth for the Ensure and Glucerna products
International Pediatnc and Adult Nutritionals sales Increases over

the thres years were due pnmanly to volume growth in daveloping
countnes and were negatively Impacted in 2012 by the effect of the
relatvely stronger U S dollar

The increases in U S Proprietary produci sales in 2011 and 2010

are primanly dus to Increased sales of HUMIRA and the acquisition of
Solvay Pharmaceuticals in February 2010, partially offset by decreased
salas of Depakote, Zemplar, and Kaletra The increases in Established
Pharmaceutical sales 11 2011 and 2010 are pnmanly due to the acqu-
sittons of Solvay Pharmaceuticals and Piramal and growth 1 emerging
markets U S Pedatnc Nutrtonals sales in 2011 and 2010 were
affected by the voluntary recall of certain Similac-brand powder infant
formulas in September 2010 and the subssquent recavery In market
shara n 2011 Internationa! Proprietary Phamaceuticals, International
Adult Nutntionals and Immunochemistry sales wara positivaly
mpacted by the effect of the relatively weaker U S dollar i 2011

and 2010 Abbott has penodically sold product nghts 1o non-strategic
products and has recorded the related gains in net sales n accor-
dance with Abbott's revenue recognition policies as discussed in

Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements Related net sales
ware approximately $58 milion in 2010, while thera were no significant
sales In 2012 and 2011

The expiration of icenses and patent protection and genenc compset-
tion can affect the tuture revenues and operating income of Abbol!
There are currently no significant patent or license expirations in the
next three yaars that are expected to affect Abbott afier the separation
of AbbVie

Operating Earmings

Gross profit margins were 62 1 percent of net sales in 2012, 60 0 per-
cent in 2011 and 58 3 percent in 2010 The increase in the gross profit
margin in 2012 was impacted by improved gross margins across all
reportable segments as a result of cost reduction nitiatves, the iImpact
of exchange and favorable product mix The increase in the gross
profit margn in 2011 was duse, In part, to improved margins in the
established pharmaceutical, diagnostics and diabetes busmesses and
was partally offset by the unfavorable sffect of exchange on the profit
margin ratio The increase in the gross profit margin n 2010 was due,
in part, to improved margins in the established pharmaceutical, vascu-
tar, diabetes, diagnostics and nutntional businesses and the favorable
affect of exchange on the gross profit margin ratio
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In the U S, states recewe price rebates from manufacturers of infant
formula under the federally subsidzed Special Supplemental Nutriion
Program for Women, infants, and Children There are also rebate
programs for pharmaceutical products in numercus countrles These
rebate programs continue to have a negative effect on the gross profit
margins of the Nutritional, Proprietary Pharmaceutical and Established
Phamacautical Preducts segments

Ressarch and davelopment expense was $4 322 bithon in 2012,

$4 129 blibon 1n 2011 and $3 724 billion in 2010 and represented
increases of 4 7 percent in 2012, 10 9 percent in 2011 and 35 7 per-
cent In 2010 Excluding charges refated to the Solvay restructunngs
announced in September 2010, research and development expense
ncreased 6 2 percent In 2011 and 20 4 percent in 2010 The 2010
increase, exclusive of the effects of the restructunng charges, reflects
the acquisitons of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business in February
2010 and Facst Biotech in Apnt 2010 The increases in 2012, 2011
and 2010 also reflect continued pipaline spending, iIncluding programs
in biologics, hepatiis C and diagnostics The majorty of ressarch and
developmant expenditures over the three years were concentrated

on pharmacautical products $2 9 billion of Abbott's 2012 research
and development expensos related to Abbott's pharmaceutical
products, of which $2 2 billon was drrectly allocated to the Propretary
Phamaceutical Products segment In 2012, research and develap-
ment expenditures totaled $367 mdlion for the Vascular Products
segment, $382 milkon for the Diagnostics Products segment,

$275 million for the Established Pharmaceutica! Products segment
and $186 milion for the Nutritional Products segment

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased & & percent in
2012 and increased 22 9 parcent m 2011 and 23 4 percent in 2010
2012 includes approximatety $405 milon related to the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott and a $100 million liigation charge refated to the
government investigation related to Depakota while 2011 includes a
Iiigation charge of $1 5 billon related 1o the Depakote investigation
Excluding separation costs, liigation charges and Solvay-related
restructunng and Integration costs, seling, general and administratve
expenses increased 4 6 percent in 2012 and 6 7 percent in 2011
Excluding charges related to Solvay restructuning and integration proj-
ects, salling, genaral and admynistrative expenses in 2010 mereased
18 2 parcent This increase, axclusive of the effects of the restructunng
and antegration charges, reflects the acquisiions of Solvay s pharma-
couticals busmess in 2010 and Advanced Medical Oplics, Inc 1n 2009
and higher prowisions for iigation in 2010 The remaning Increases in
selling, general and adnunistrative expanses over the three year penod
were due pnmarily to increased selling and marketing support for new
and extsting products, ncluding continued spending for HUMIRA,
inflation, and in 2011, the mpagct of the pharmaceutical fee Imposed
by U 8§ healthcare reform legisiation

Restructurings

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans to streamline various
commercial oparabons 0 order to reduce costs and improve efficien-
cies In Abbott's core diagnostics, established pharmaceutical and
nutntionals businesses Abbott recordad employee related severance
charges of approximately $167 million in 2012 Additional charges of

approximately $22 milkon were also recorded in 2012, pnmanly for
asset imparments Approximately $70 mifion is recorded in Cost of
products sold and approximataly $119 milion as Selling, genaral and
administratve expense As of December 31, 2012, no significant cash
payments have been made relating to these actions

In 2011 and pnor years, Abbott management approved plans to
realign Its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manutactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and developmant operations in order to reduce cosls

In 2011 and 2010, Abhott recarded charges of approximately

$194 millon and $56 million, respectively, reflocting the impaiment

of manufactunng faciities and other assets, employee severance and
other related charges Approximately $76 million in 2011 1s ¢classified
as Cost of products sold, $69 millon as Research and development
and $49 million as Seling, general and admmistrative Approximately
$56 milhon in 2010 15 classified as Cost of products sold The following
summarnzes the actmty for these restructunngs

{daltars v mulions)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 $ 145
2010 restructuring charges 56
Payments, iImpaiments and other adustments (124)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 77
2011 restructuring charges 194
Payments, impalments end other adustments {84}
Accrued batance 8t December 31 2011 177
Payments arxd other adjustmeants (48)
Accrued balance at December 31 2012 $120

An additional $110 milkon, $25 millon and $13 milion were recorded
in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respactively, relating to thesae restructunngs,
pnmanly for accelerated depreciation

in 2012 and 2010, Abbott managesmant approved restructuring

plans pnmarily related to the acquisition of Salvay's pharmaceuticals
business These plans streamiine oparations, improve efficiencies and
reduce costs n certain Solvay sites and funchions as well as In certain
Abbott and Solvay commercial organizations in vanous countries

In 2012, Abbotl recorded a charge of approximately $150 million for
employee severance and contractual abhgations, primanty related

to the exit from a research and development faclity Approximatsly
$142 milkon is recorded as Research and development and $8 milkon
as Seling, general and administrative In 2010, Abbaoll reconded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Selling, general and adminisirative of approximately $99 million,

$152 millon and $272 mullion, respectively The following summanzes
the activity for these restructunngs

{dollars in milrons)

2010 restructuring charge $ 523
Paymaents, impairments and other adjustments (113)
Accrued balance a1 December 31 2(HO 410
Payments and other edustments (302)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 108
Aestructunng charges 150
Payments and other adjustments (143)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 $115
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An addibonal $38 milion, $102 millon and $12 millon wers recorded in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to these restructunngs, pn-
manty for additional employee severance and accelerated depraciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott managemeant approved plans to sireamline
global manufactuning operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
officiencies in Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge
of $28 millilon was recordad in Cost of products sold The following
summanzeos the actrty for these restructurings

{doflars wr mullons)

Accrued batance at January 1, 2010 $o8
Paymenis end othar adjustmants (10)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 88
2011 restructuring charge 28
Paymants and giher adjustments 3N
Accrued balance ai Dacember 31, 2011 79
Payments and other adjustments {23}
Agorued balanco at December 31, 2012 $ 56

In addition, charges of approximately $16 milion, $42 millon and
$60 millon ware recorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, prmanly for accel-
arated depreciation and product transfer costs

Interest expense and Interest [income)

In 2012, interest expense increased pnmanly due to bndge faciity
feas related to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott In 2011, interest
axpense decreased due to lower dabt fevels Interest income in 2012
and 2011 decreased as a result of lower rates In 2010, interest
expense increased due pnimanly to increased debt levels Interast
income decreased in 2010 due to lower investment balances

Change in Accounting Principle and Other (ncome} expense, net

Pror to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidianes were
cansoldated based on a fiscal year ended November 30 dus to the
time needed to consolidate these subsidianes Effective January 1,
201 1, the one month lag in the consokdation of the accounts of
foreign subsidianes was eliminated and the year-end of forsign subsid-
1anes was changed 1o December 31 Abbott belisves that the change
n accounting princtple related to the elmination of the one month
reporting lag 1s preferable because t resulls n more contemporaneous
reporting of the results of foreign subsidianes In accordance with
applicable accounting literature, a change in subsidianes’ year-end 15
treated as a change in accounting principle and requrres retrospective
applcation The cumulatwve effect of the change was an increase in
retainad earnings of $289 million as of January 1, 2008 and a core-
sponding decraase In other long-term labiies The impact of the
change was nol matenal to the results of operations for the previousty
reparted annual and Intenm penods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
those results have not been rewised A charge of $137 milion was
racorded to Other income) expense, net n 2011 to recognize the
cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financial
statements been revised, net sales, operating earnmngs and net eam-
iNgs in 2010 would have decreased by $21 mulion, $195 milkon and
$175 milhon, respectively
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Other (income) expanse, net, for 2012 includes income of approxi-
mately $60 million from the resolution of a contractual agreement and
a loss of approxmately $62 milion for the imparment of certaln equity
secunties Other income) expensa, net, for 2011 includes $56 milion
of falr value adjustments and accretion in the contingent consideraton
related to the acqusition of Solvay's pharmagceutical business Other
{income) expenss, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongo-
ing contractuat payments from Takeda associated with the conclusion
of the TAP joint venture

Net Loss on Extinguishment of Dabt

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 bilion of
long-term debt Abbott ncurred a cost of $1 35 billion to extinguish
this dabt, net of gains from the unwinding of interest rate swaps
related to the dabt

Taxes on Earnings

The incoime tax rates on earnings were 4 8 percent n 2012, 9 0 per-
cent In 2011 and 18 0 percent in 2010 Taxes on earnings 1IN 2012
reflact the $493 milion effect of the tax rate applied to Abbott's net
debt extingushment loss as wall as the recognition of $408 mullon of
tax benefits as a result of the favorable resclution of vanous tax post-
lions pertaining to a pnor year, which also decreased the gross
amount of unrecognized tax bensfits by approximately $560 mulion
Taxes on earnings in 2011 reflact the effect of the tax rate apphed to

a Iitigation reserve and the recognition of $580 million of tax benefils
as a result of the faverable resolution of vanous tax positions perlaining
to prior years, which also decreased the gross amount of unrecog-
nized tax benefis by approximately $1 3 bilion Exclusve of these
discrete iterns, the effectiva rates are lower than the U S federal
statutory rata of 35 percent due prnmanty to the benefit of lower foraign
tax rates and tax exemphions that reduced the tax rates by 24 9,22 9,
and 19 4 pereentage points in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

The tax rate reductions are pnmanly denved from operations In

Puerto Rico, Switzerland, Ireland and Singapore where Abbott benefits
from a combination of favorable statutory tax nules, tax rulings, grants,
and exemplions See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
for a full reconcilialion of the effective fax rate to the U S federat
statulory rate

As a result of the Amencan Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 signed into
{aw In January 2013, Abbott expects to record a tax benefit of
approximately $100 milhon in the first quarter of 2013 for the retroac-
tive extension of the resaarch tax credit and the look-through rules '
of section 954(c}{6) of the Internal Revenue Code to the beginning

of 2012 Excluding this and any other discrete items, Abbott expects

10 apply an annual effectve rale of approximately 21 percent

As a result of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconciliabion Act which were signed into
law in 2010, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $60 milion in
2010 to reduce deferred tax assets associated with retiree health care
labilities related to the Medicare Part D reliree drug subsidy

In Cctober 2010, Puerto Rico enacted legistation that assesses a tax
beginning in 2011 on certan products manufactured in Puerto Rico
Tha tax is levied on gross intercompany purchases from Puerto Rican
entites and 1s included mn inventory costs In 2012 and 2011, cost of
goods sold included $167 millon and $111 millon, respectvely,
refated to this tax The lax s creditable for U S income tax purposes
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Research and Development Programs

Abbott currentty has numerous phamaceutical, medical and nutntional
products in development

Research and Development Process

In the Propnetary Pharmaceuticals segment, the research and
development process generally begins with discovery research which
focuses on the idantificatton of a moleculs that has a deswed effect
agamnst a given disease If preclinical testing of an identified compeund
proves successiul, the compound moves into chnical developmant
which gensrally includes the following phases

¢ Phase | — involves the first human tests in a small number of
healthy volunteers 1o assess tolerability and potential dosing

+ Phase il — tesis the molecula’s efficacy against the disease
In a small group of patients

+ Phase [l — tests a molecule that demonstrates favorable results
tn the earlier phasas in a significantly larger patient population to
further demonstrate efficacy and safety basad on regulatory criterla

The chnical tnals from all of the development phases provide the
data required to prepare and submit a New Drug Application (NDA),
a Biological License Application (BLA) or other submission for regula-
tory approval to the U S Food and Drug Administration (FDA) or
similar government agencies outside the LU S The specific require-
ments (e g, scope of ciinical trials) for obtaining regulatory approval
vary across differant countnes and geographic regions

The research and development process from discovery through

a naw drug launch typically takes 8 - 12 years and can be even longer
There 15 a significant amount of uncertainty inharent in the research
and development of new pharmaceutical products and there 1s no
guarantee when, or if, a molecule will receive the regulatory approval
required {o launch a new drug or indication

In addtion to the development of new products and new formulations,
propnetary phammaceutical research and devalopment projects also
may include Phase IV trials, sometimes callad post-marketing studies
For such projacts, clinical tnals are designed and conducted 1o coliect
additional data regarding, among other parameters, the benefits and
nsks of an approved drug

In the Established Pharmaceuticals segment, the development
process focuses on the gecgraphic expansion and continuous
improvermnent of the segment’s existing products to provide benefits
to patients and customers As Established Pharmaceuticals does
not actively pursua pnmary research, davelopment usually begins
with work on existing products or after the acquistion of an advanced
stage licensing cpportunity

Depending upon the product, the phases of development may include
* [Drug product development

* Phase | bioequivalence studies to compare a future Eslablished
Pharmaceutical s brand wath an already marketed compound with
the same active pharmacautical ingredient (APT)
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» Phase || studies to test the efficacy of benefits in a small group
of patients

» Phase [l studies to broaden the testing to a wider population that
reflects the actual medical use

* Phase [V and other post-marketing studies to obtain new dinical
use data on existing products wathin epproved indications

The specific requrements (8 g scope of chinical inals) for obtaining
regulatory approval vary across different countnes and geographic
regions The process may range from one yaar for a bicequvalence
study project to 6 or more years for complex formulations, new indica-
tions, or geographic expansion in specific countries such as China

In the Diagnostics segment, the phases of the research and
development procass include

« Discovery which focuses on dentification of a product that wall
acidress a speciiic therapeut: area, plattorm, or unmet clirical need,

* Concept/Feasibility during which the matenals and manufacturing
processes are evaluated, testing may nclude product charactariza-
tion and analysis 1s parformed to confirm chnical utiity, and

* Develcpment dunng which extensive testing 15 parformed to
demonstrate that the product mests specified design requirements
and thal the design speclifications conform to user needs and
intended uses

As with pharmaceutical products, the regulatory requirements for
diagnostic products vary across different countnes and geographlc
regions Inthe U S, the FDA classifies diagnostic products into
classes {, ll, or Hl} and the classification determines the regulatory
process for approval Whils the Diagnostics segment has products
in all three classes, the vast majorty of its products ame categorized
as Class | or Class I| Submission of a separate regulatory filng 1s
not required for Class | products Class | dewices typically require
pre-markel notification to the FDA through a regulatory filing known
as a 510(k) subrmssion Most Class |ll products are subject to the
FDAs Pre-Markeling Approval {PMA} requiremants Other Class it
products, such as those used to screen blood, require the subrmission
and approval of a BLA

In the EU, diagnostic products are also categonzed into different cate
gones and the regulatory procass, which 1s governed by the European
In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Device Directive, depends upon the cate-
gory Certain prodtict categories require review and approval by an
independerd company, known as a Notfied Body, befere the manufac-
turar can afiix a CE mark to the product to show comphance with the
Directve Other products only require a seli-cerlification procass

In the Vascutar segment, the research and development process
begins with research on a specihic tachnology that 15 evaluated for
teastbility and commercial viabilty If the research program passes that
hurdle, it moves forward into develocpment The development process
includes evatuation and selection of a product design, completion of
clinical trials to test the product s safety and efficacy, and validation of
the manufactunng process to demonstrale its repeatability and ability
1o conssstantly mest pre-determined specifications
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Similar to the diagnostic products discussed above, nthe U S,
vascular products are classtfied as Class |, i, or lll Most of Abbott's
vascular products are classified as Class || devices that follow the
510{k} regulatory procass or Class Il devices that are subject to the
PMA process

In the EU, vascular products are also categonzed into different classes
and the regulatory process, which is governad by the Eurcpean
Medical Dewice Direchive, vanes by class Each product must bear

a CE mark to show compliance with the Directive Some products
raguire subrmission of a design dosster to the appropnate regulatory
authonty for review and approval prior to CE marking of the device
For other products, the company 1s required to prepare a technical
file which includes testing results and clinical evaluations but can
seli-certify its abiity to apply the CE mark to the product Outside the
US and the EU, the regulatory requirements vary across different
countries and regions

After approval and commercial launch of some vascular products,
post-market inals may be conducted ether due to a conditional
requirement of the regulatory market approval or with the objective
of proving product supenority

In the Nutntional segment, the research and development process
generally focuses on identifying and devetoping ingredients and prod-
ucts that address the nuirtional needs of particular poputations (e g,
nfants, athletes) or patients {8 g . people with diabetes) Depending
upon tha country and/or region, If claims regarding a product s efficacy
will be made, clinical studies typically must be conducted Most other
product development, such as a product form changs from hquid to
powdar, generally does not necessitate clincal studies

Inthe U S, the FDA requires that it be notified of proposed new
formulations and formulation or packaging changes related to infant
formula products Prior to the faunch of an nfant formula or product
packaging change, the company 1s requred to obtaun the FDA's
confirmation that it has no objections to the proposed product or
packaging For other nutrition products, notification or pre-approval
from the FDA 1s not required unless the product includes a new food
adddtive |n some counines, regulatory approval may be required

for certan nutntional products, inclucing infant formula and medical
nutritional products

Areas of Focus

In 2013 and beyond, Abbott’s significant areas of therapsutic focus
will Include the following

Established Pharmaceuticals - Abbott is actively working on plans for
about 20 - 30 key brands Depending on the product, the development
actvibies focus on new data, markets, formulations, combinations,

or Indications Abbott focuses on bulding country-specific portfolios
made up of global and local pharmaceutical brands that best meet
each local market's needs Over the next several years, Established
Phammaceuticals will work to expand the market for many of its
products through registrations across multiple geographies, Including
koy emerging markets
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Vascular - Ongolng projects i the pipeline include

* Xience Xpedition, our naxt-ganaration drug-eluting stent (DES)
with enhanced delverabiity and an expanded size matrix It ulizes
the Xierce PRIME stent, everalimus and biocompatible coating
technology but mconporates new catheter tachnology for improved
delverabilty Xrence Xpeditror receved U S regulatory approval
in December 2012 and is also avallable m Europs and parts of
Asia and Latin Amenca Abbott expects 10 launch the product in
additional markets in 2013

* Absorb, the world’s first drug eluting bioresorbable vascular
scaffold {BVS} device for the treatment of coronary artery disease
that 1s gradually resorbed into the vessel wall In January 2013
Abbott initrated the ABSORB Il clinical tnal which 1s designed to
enroll approximately 2,250 patients of which the majonty will be in
the U S The data from this tnal will be used to support the U S
regulatory filng of Absorb In 2011 Abbot! released five-year data
from its ABSORB climical tnal, which showed sfficacy and safety
results consistent with the four-year data In 2011 after recelving
CE Mark approval for Absorb, Abbott intiated a randomized,
controlled clinical tnal to further study the device In an expanded
population in Europe In 2010, Abbott inthated the ABSORB
EXTEND clinical tnal which will enroll up to 1,000 patients with
more complex coronary artery disease

* MitraChip device for the treatment of mitral regurgitation —
Abbott's MitraClip system which s on the market in Europe and
in parts of Asta and Latin America 1s currently under review for
approval by the FDA  An amended filing to the FDA was submitted
in Dacember 2011 A FDA panel is expected to raview the filing
n the first half of 2013

+ Coranary and endovascuiar core product projects, including new
coronary and endovascular guide wires  The Absolute Pro and
Omnilink Elite stent systems, both for the treatment of hac artery
disease, a form of penpheral artery disease that afiects the lower
extremitios, were launched inthe U S 1n 2012

Medical Optics — Abbott 1s developing a number of new products

for patients undergoing cataract surgery, which are dasigned to
improve phystcian efficiency and patient outcomes Abbott has devel-
oped advanced Intraocular lenses (I0Ls} that address astigmatism as
well as presbyopra The Tecnis brand moncfocal Tonc 0L, which s
s0ki In Europe, 18 currently undergong U S regulatory review A multi-
focal version of the Tone I0L was launched in 2 number of international
markets N 2012 A preloaded IOL inserbion system that 1S designed to
improve surgeon efficiency is also currently under regulatory review n
the U S, the product was launched In Europe In 2012 Abbott is con-
tinuing the development actmties required to obtan U S approval for
an enhanced version of tha Synchrany [OL which is designed to mimic
the eya's natural abilty to change focus and deliver improved vision at
all distancas, this product was launched in Europe in late 2012 Abbott
has atso developed a new diagnostic instrument and laser trealment
planning software which is designed to improve visual outcomes After
the receipt of CE Mark approval in Novemnber 2011, this instrument
and software were launched in Europe 1n 2012 APMA filing forU S
regulatory approval of this product was submitted in 2012
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Molacular Diagnostics — Vanous new molecular in vitro diagnostic (VD)
products, including oncology and infectious disease assays and a next
generation instrument systerm are in vanous stages of devalopment
and commercialzation Abbott's companion diagnestic test for an
ALK gene rearrangement test for non-small-cell lung cancer has been
approved In more than 40 countres around the world In 2012,
companton diagnostic efforts were expanded to includs collaborative
offorts with muttiple major pharmaceutical companies Inthe U S,

an assay {o ganotype HCV-infected patients to ald in the cholce of an
appropnate therapy was submitted for regulatory approval Additional
assays for infectious diseases Includng MTb and MThb drug resistance
are In development

Core Laboratory Diagnostics — Abbott 1s working on the development
of assays In vanous areas including infectious disease, cardiac care,
fertiity and metabolics, and on next-generation blood screening,
hematology, and immunochemistry nstrument systems Abbott Is also
focusing on near-term launches of automation solutions, such as its
next-genaraton track system, ACCELERATOR a3600 to increase
efficiency n laboratonas

Diabetes Care — In the first quarter of 2012, Abbott obtained U S
regulatory approval for s FreeStyle Insulinx blood glucose monitorng
systermn that includes a touch-screen interface and other features
designed 1o support the insulin-using patient After recening CE Mark
for this system in May 2011 and Health Canada approval in October
2011, Abbott s continuing to provide R&D suppon as the product

1s launched in adddional markets Development 1s also contnuing on
an updated hospital blood glucose montonng systemn for which a filng
for approval Is projected to be submitted in the U S during the first
half of 2013 Abbott 1s also developing a next-generation monitanng
systerm under the Pragision product platform and for which Abbott
antictpates submitting fiings for approval in vanous markets In the
second half of 2013

Nutrtion ~ Abbott is focusing its research and development spend

on six benefit platforms that span the pediatric, adult and perfonmance
nutrtion areas immunity, cogmition, lean body mass, inflammation,
metabolism and tolerance Numerous new products that build on
advances 1n these benefit platforms are currently under development
and are expected to be launched over the coming years

Gven the diversity of Abbolt's business, is intention to remain a
broad-based healthcare company and the numerous sources for
potental future growth, no indmidual project 1s expectad to be matenal
to cash flows or results of operations over the next five years Factors
considerad included research and development expenses projected to
be incurred for the project cver the next year relative {0 Abbott s total
ressarch and development expenses as well as qualitative factors,
such as markeiplace perceptions and impact of a new product on
Abbott's overall market position There were no delays in Abbott's
2012 research and development actmbes that are expected to have

a matenal impact on operations
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While the aggregate cost to complete the numerous projects cumently
n development is expected to be material, the total cost to complete
will depend upon Abbott's ability 1o successfully complete sach
project, the rate at which each project advances, and the ullimate
timing for complation Gwven the potential for significant detays and
the agh rate of failure mherent in the research and development of
new pharmaceutical and medical device products and technologies,

it 1s not possible to accurately estimate the total cost to complete all
projects currently in development After the separation of AbbVie,
Abbolt plans to manage its portfolio of projects to achiove research
and development spend equal to approximately 6 percent to 7 percent
of sales each year Abbott does not regularly accumutate or make
management decisions based on the total expensaes incurred for a
particular development phase in a given penod

Business Combinations Technology Acquisitions and
Related Tiansactions

On Septernber 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Pirama) Healthcare Limited's
Healthcare Solubons business, a leader in the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 bilion, in cash, plus additonal payments of $400 milion
annually in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbott recorded a $1 6 billon
labity for the present value of the addtional payments at the acquisiion
date The acquisition was financed withcash The allocation of the fair
value of the acquisition resutted in the recording of $2 7 billon of
deductible acquired intangible assets and $1 O bithon of deductible
goodwill Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of trade names,
customer relationships and assocsated rights and are amortized over
an average of 19 years

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay s pharmaceuticals business
(Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $6 1 bilion, in cash, plus
addiional payments of up to EUR 100 million per year if certain sales
milestones are met in 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $290 mdhon was recorded  The acquisition of Solvay
Pharmacsuticals provded Abbott with a large and complementary
portiohio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott's presence
In key global emerging markets Abbott acquired control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financlat results of the acquired
operations are included in these financial statemaents beginning on that
date Net sales for the acquired operations for 2010 were approxi-
mately $3 1 billon Pretax loss of the acquired operations, including
acqusitron, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $395 milion The acquisiion was funded with cash and
short-term investments The allocation of the farr value of the acquisi-
tion resulted in the recording of $2 2 billon of non-deductible goodwill,
$4 1 billon of non-deductible intangible assets, $500 million of non-
deductible acquired In process research and developmaent assets, net
tangible assets of $700 milion and deferred income taxes of $1 1 bil-
llon Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of product nghts for
currently marketed products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years
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{average of 11 years) Acquired In-process research and development
projects are accounted for as indefinite lived intangible assets until
regulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assats
acquired consist pnmanly of trade accounts receivable of approx
matsly $675 miltton, inventory of approximatety $390 million, property
and equipment of approximately $725 milion, net of assumed liabll-
ties, pnmanly trade accounts payable, accrued compsnsation and
other labilities

Had the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals taken place on

January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, net sarnings and
diuted earnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 billion,

$4 6 billon and $2 96, respectively The pro forma information includes
adusiments for amortization of intangible assets and far value adjust-
ments to acquisiion-date nventory as well as acquisition, integration
and mestructunng expenses The pro forma financial information 1s not
nacessarlly ndicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been effected on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquined STARLIMS Technologies for approxi-
mately $100 million, in cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, providing
Abbott with leading products and expertise 1o build its position in
laboratory informatics A substantial portion of the fair vatus of the
acqursttion has been alkicated to goodwill and amortizable intangible
assets In Apni 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of
Facet Biotech Corporation for approximately $430 million, in cash,

net of cash held by Facat The acquistion enhanced Abbott's early-
and mid-stage pharmaceutical pipshneg, including a bioctogic for
multiple sclerosis and compounds that complament Abbott's oncology
program A substantial portion of the far value of the acquisition was
aliocated to acquired in-process research and development that is
accounted for as an indefinite Ived intangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisiions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoll-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly different
from reported amounts

Abbott's Proprietary Pharmaceutical Products segment has enterad
into various collaboration rasearch and development agreemeants

In 2012, Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under development for the
pravention of acute kidney injury associated with major cardiac surgery
n patients at Increased risk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired In-process and collaborations research
and development of $110 millon in addition, n 2012, Abbott entered
nto a global collaboration to develop and commercialize an oral,
naxt-generation JAK1 inhibitor in Phase |l development with the
potential to treat multiple autoimmune diseases, and as a result of
this transaction Abbott recorded a charge to acquired in-procass and
collaborations research and development of $150 millon Additional
payments of approximately $1 2 biflon could be required for the
achieverment of certain development, regulatory and commercial
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milestones under this agreement Under another collabaration,
Abbott was granted the nghts n 2012 to utilize up to three antibody-
drug conugate compounds and Abbott recorded a charge to acquired
n-process and collaborat:ons research and development of $28 mil-
lon Addiional payments of approximatety $220 million for each
licansed compound could be required for the achisvement of certain
development, regulatory and commerclal miestones under this agroe-
mant In connection with the acquisition of Salvay Pharmaceuticals,
the achlevement of a certain sales milestona resulted in a payment

of approximately $134 milion in the first quarter of 2012 for which a
liability was previously established

During 2010 and 2011, Abbott entered into a series of fransactions
with Reata Phamaceuticals which Included (1} a collaboration agree-
ment for the Joint development and commercialization of second
generaticn oral antioxidant inflammation modulators resulting in a
charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research and devel-
opment of $400 millon in 2011, {2} an agreement 1o acquire licansing
nghts outside the U S , excluding certain Asian markets, {o bardoxo-
tone methyl, a product in development for the treatrment of chronic
kidney disease resulting in a charge to acquired in-process and collab-
orations research and development of $238 milhon in 2010 and (3) the
acquisition of equity interests in Reata of $62 mifion each in 2011 and
2010 In 2011, certan milastones ware achweved in the devetopment
for the treatment of chronic kidney disease and charges lo acquired
in-process and collaborations research and development of $188 mil-
lion were recorded In the first quarter of 2012, $50 millon of research
and development expense was recorded refated to the achievement
of a chnical development milestone under the hcense agreement The
Iicense agreement requires additional payments of up to $150 milkon
If certain development and regulatory milestones associated with the
chronic kdnay disease compound are achieved

On Cctober 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that it 1s discontinuing
the Phasa Il cliical study for bardoxolona methyl for chronic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to determine whather there 1s an appropnate path forward for
the development of bardoxolone methyl in chronic kidney disease or
other incications In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 million for the imparment of the equity
investment in Reata

In 2011, Abbolt eniered nto an agreement with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialze a treatment for theumatoid arthntis and psonasis
resulting n a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations
research and devaloprent of $85 millon Additional payments totaling
up to $395 mullion based on projected regulatory approval timelines
could be required for the achievement of certain development, regula
tory and commarclal milestones under this agreement In 2010, Abbot!
entered into an agreement with Neurocnne Biosclences to develop
and commercialize a product for the treatment of endometnosis result-
g n a charge to acquired In process and collaborations research and
development of $75 millon Additional payments of approximately
$500 million could be raquired for the achievement of certain develop-
ment, regutatory and commercial milestones under this agreement
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Goodwili

At December 31, 2012, goodwill recorded as a result of business
combinations totaied $15.8 bilkon Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment
annually or when an event that could result in an imparrment occurs
Tha results of the last impalrment test indicated that the farr value of
each reporting urit was substantially In excess of its carrying value
axcept for the Medical Optics unit Whe the tair value of the Medical
Ophcs business exceeds its carrying value, extended economic pres-
sure on government-reimbursed cataract procedures in Europe and
on the global LASIK surgery business as well as longer regulatory
approval tmelines for products currently under davelopment could
resull In a valuation in the future whers the falr value of the Medical
Optics unit has declined below s carmying value, thereby tnggenng the
requiremant to estimate the impliad fair value of the goodwill and mea-
sura for impairment

Financial Conciitton
Cash Flow

et cash from operating actrbies amounted to $9 3 bilkon, $9 O biflion
and $8 7 billon in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely Trade accounts
payable and other labiliies in Net cash from operating activities n
2012 includes the payment of approximately $1 5 billion related to

a litigation accrual recorded in 2011 This was partially offset by
Increases in other liabilites, pnmanly restructunng reserves Income
{axas payable in 2012 and 2011 mcludes $408 mulion and $580 mil-
lion, raspectively, of tax banehits related {o the favorable resolution of
vanous tax positions perlaining to prior years While substantially all
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 that will be retamed
by Abbolt after tha separation and all cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 s considered reinvested indefintely

n foreign subsidiaries, Abbott does not expect such reinvastment to
affect its iquedity and capital resources If these funds were needed
for operations In the U S, Abbott would be required to accrue and
pay U S income taxes o repatnate these funds  Abboit believes

that it has sufficient sources of liquidity to support its assumption that
the disclosed amount of undistrbuted earnings at Decamber 31, 2012
can be considered to be reinvested indsfinitely Abbott funded

$379 million n 2012, $394 millon in 201 1 and $525 milion in 2010 1o
defined pension plans Abbott expects pension funding for ts man
domastic pension plan of $170 mition in 2013, the decrease primardy
reflects the separation of AbbVie and the transfer of certain plan
assets and habilities to AbbVie Abbott expects annual cash flow from
operating aciivings 1o continue to excesd Abbott's capial expendiures
and cash dwidends

For 2010, the reductions in cash and cash equivalents due to the
effect of exchange rate changes was pnmarilly dnven by the impact

of changaes in the value of the LI S dollar compared to the euro on
non-dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents While future fluc-
tuations in the value of the US dollar against foreign cumrencies could
have a substanhal effect on the dollar value of Abbott’s cash and cash
equivalents, such fluctuations are not expected 10 matenally impact
Abbott's lquidity

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2012, Abbott’s long-term debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor's Gorporaton and Al by Moody's lnvastors Sarvice
In 2012, Abbott replaced unused lnes of credit of $3 O bilion and

$3 7 bilion that wera to expire in Cctober 2012 and in 2013, respec-
tively, with lwo five-year credit faciities totaling $7 O billon that support
commercial paper borrowing arrangements One of the credit facilities
totaing $2 O billon will support AbbVie commercial paper borrewings
afler separation and expired for Abbott at the separation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013

In 2012, Abboit redesmed $7 7 billion of long-term nates in prapara-
fion for the separation of AbbVie from Abbott and repaid $1 billion

of long-term notes that were due in 2012 in addition, AbbVie Inc ,

a wholly ownad subsidhary of Abbott, 1ssued $14 7 billion of long-term
notes that were guarantead by Abbott untd AbbVie's separation from
Abbott an January 1, 2013 In 2011, Abbott repaid $2 0 billion of long-
term notes usmg primanly short-term borrowings  Under a registration
statement filed with the Secunties and Exchange Comrmission in
February 2009, Abbott issued $3 0 bilion of long-term debt in the sec
ond quarter of 2010 with matunty dates in 2015, 2020 and 2040 and
interast rates of 2 7 percent, 4 125 percent and 5 3 percent, respac-
tively The debt dus in 2015 was extinguished in 2012 Proceads from
this debt were used 10 pay down short-term borrowings

In QOctober 2008, the board of dwectors authorized the purchase of up
1o §5 bilton of Abbott’'s common shares from time 1o time Under this
authonzation, 37 O million and 14 8 million shares were purchased in
2012 and 2010 at a cost of approximately $2 2 billon and $800 mul-
lion, respectively No shares were purchased under this authonzation
in 2011 Abbott plans to purchase shares from time to twne n 2013

The judgment entered in 2009 by the U S District Court for the
Eastern Distnct of Texas against Abbott in its itigation wath New York
Unwearsity and Centocer, Inc required Abbott to secure the judgment
In the event that its appeal to the Federal Circuit court was unsuccess-
ful In overturning the district court’s decision In the first quarter of
2010, Abbott deposited $1 87 billion with an escrow agent and con-
siderad these assets to be restricted On February 23, 2011, the
Federal Gircuit reversed the distnet court’s final judgment and found
Cantocor's patent swvalid On Apnt 25, 2011, Centocor petitioned the
Federal Circuit to rehear and reconsider the decision In Jung 2011
the Federal Circutt denied Centocor's petition and the restnctions on
the funds were Iifted
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Working Capital

Working capltal was $18 0 billon at December 31, 2012, $8 3 bilion
at December 31, 2011 and $5 1 billon at December 31, 2010 The
increass in workang capital in 2012 was due primanly to higher cash
generated from operating actvties and higher cash and investments
as a result of the ne! issuance of long-term debt in connection with the
separation of AbbVie from Abbott The increase In working capital In
2011 was due primanly to highar cash generated from operating actv
ties and lower debt levels Tha decrease in working capital in 2010
was due pnmanly to cash and investments used 1o acquire Soivay's
pharmaceuticals business and Pramal Healthcare Limited’s Healthcare
Solutions business

Substantiatly all of Abbott's trade receivables in taly, Spain, Portugal,
and Greace are with governmental health systems Gwen Ihe eco-
nomic conditions and sovereign deb! 1ssues in these countries, the
time It takes to collact outstanding recevables increased n 2011

In 2012, collection times improved relative to 201 1 with the exception
of Greece Quistanding net governmental raceivables in these coun-
tnes al December 31, 2012 were

Net Parceniage Cver
{dokars v miikons) Recelvablas One Year Past Due
Italy %504 162
Spain 431 o8
Portugal 121 284
Greaco 88 298

With the exception of Greece, Abbott historically has collected almost
all of the outstanding receivables in these countnes Abbott continues
to monitor the credit worthiness of customers located in these and
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other geographic areas and establishes an alowance agains! a trade
recavabla when it Is probable that the balance will not be collected

1n addition to clossly monitonng economic condiions and budgetary
and other fiscal developments in these countnes, Abbott regularly
communicatas with Its customers regarding the status of recevable
balances, including their payment plans and obtains positive confirma-
tion of the validity of the recevables Abbott also maonitors the potential
for and penodically has utized factoring arrangements to mitgate
credit nsk although the recenvables included in such arrangements
have histoncally not been a matenal amount of total outstanding
receivables If government funding wers to become unavailable In
these countnas or If significant adverse changes in thelr reimburse-
ment practices were to occur, Abbott may not be able to collect the
entire balance

Capital Expenditutes

Capital expenditures of $1 8 bilion in 2012, $1 5 billion in 2011

and $1 0 bilhon 1n 2010 were prnclpally for upgrading and expanding
manufactunng, rasearch and development, and administrative support
facilties in all segmants, investments ininformation technology, and
laboratory instruments placed with customers

Contractual Obiigations

The table betow summanzes Abbott’s estimated contractual obligations
as of Decamber 31, 2012 The amounis do not reflect the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 After the separalion of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013, pnncipal payments requirsd on long-
term debt outstanding and retained by Abbott are $309 milllon in 2013
and $3 3 billion n 2019 and thereatter Payments on long-term debt to
be mada by AbbVie, Including interest, total approximatety $19 6 bilion

{doliars n mitions) Payment Due By Period
2018 and
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
Long term debt including current maturittes and future interest payments $26,403 $ 839 $ 5038 $4 928 $15,596
Operating leass obligations 705 148 234 170 245
Capitalized auto lease obligations 92 31 61 - -
Purchasa commiments {a) 3,154 3,048 88 1 17
Other long term babilities reflected on the consolidated balance shest —
Benefit plan obligations 5,128 - 1,024 1,149 2,953
Othar 3,869 - 3,682 32 155
Total (b) $39,43% $4.064 $10,128 $8,281 $18,066

{a) Puchase commitments are for purchases made in 1he normal course of busmess 1o meet operational and caprial expenciiure requremen's

) Unrecognized tax bensfita totaing $2 © bilon are excludad from the table above as Abbot: 5 unable 10 reasonably estmate the penod of cash saltlement with the respeciive taxing

authorr'ies on such rems
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Contingent Oblhigations

Abbott has periodically entered Into agresments In the ardinary
course of business, such as assignment of product nghts, with other
companles which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondanly liable
for obligations that Abbott was previously pnmanly lable Since Abbott
no longer maintains a business relahonship with the other parties,
Abbott is unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential
amount of future paymeanis, i any, under these obligations Based
upon past expenence, the likelhood of payments under these agree-
ments is rmote In addition, Abbott pericdically acquires a business
or product nghts in which Abbotlt agress to pay contingant consider-
ation based on attaining certain thresholds or based on the
occurrence of cartaln evants

Legislative lssues

In 2010, the Patient Protection and Atfordable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconciltation Act (collectively referred
1o herein as "health care reform legislation”) were signed Into law in
the U S Health care reform legistation included an increase i the
basic Madicaid rebate rate from 15 1 percent to 23 1 percent and
axtended the rebate to drugs provided through Medicaxd managed
cara crganizations

Beginning in 2013, health care reform legislalion will eliminate the
federal incoms tax deduchoen for prescription drug expenses of refirees
for which Abbott recaves reimbursement under the Madicare Part O
refiree drug subsidy program  As a rasult, Abbott recorded a charge of
approximately $60 mullion 1n the first quarter 2010 to reduce deferred
tax assets assoclated with retires health care liabilities

| s150
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2007 2008 2009 2010

Assuming $100 Invested on 12/31/07 with dividends reinvested
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In 2011, Abbott began recording the annual fee imposad by health
care reform legislation on companies that ssll branded prescription
drugs to specified government programs The amount of the annual
fea is based on the ratio of certain of Abbott's sales as compared to
the total such sales of all coverad entities multiplied by a fixed dollar
amount specified in the legislation by year In 2011, addiional rebates
were incurred related to the Medicare Part D coverage gap “donut
hole * Baginning in 2013, Abbott will record the 2 3 parcent excise tax
imposed by health care reform legistation on the sale of certain medi-
caldevicesinthe U S

Abbott’s prmary markets are highly competitive and subject to sub
stantial government regulations throughout the wortd Abbott expects
debate to continue over the availability, method of delvery, and pay-
menl for health care products and sarvices 1t 15 not possible to pradict
the extent to which Abbott or the health care Industry in general might
be adversely affected by these factors in the future A more complete
discussion of these factors is contalned in ltem 1, Busingss, and ltem
1A, Risk Factors, to the Annual Report on Form 10-K

Private Secunties Libigation Reform Act of 1995 ~
A Caution Concerming Forward-Looking Statements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Abbott cautions invastors that any forward-look-
ing statements or projections made by Abbott, mcluding those made
n this document, are subject to nsks and uncertainties that may cause
actual results to differ matenally from those projected Economic, com-
pelitive, governmental, technofogicat and other factors thal may affact
Abbott's operations are discussed in ftem 1A, Risk Factors, to the
Annual Raport on Form 10 K
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Year Ended December 31 202 20m 2010 2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Summary of Operations

Net Sales $30.6739 388513 351687 307647 295276 250142 224763 223378 196500 172803 152705
Cost of products soid $151197 155408 146652 132083 126120 11,4220 8151 106411 8,884 2 7742 68205
Research and development (8) & 4,322 2 4,128 4 37244 27437 2,685 1 25056 22853 18212 1,696 8 16238 1474 5
Sating general

and administratve §12,0595 127568 10,3763 8,4059 84356 7,4080 63497 5,486 1 49218 4 8081 3,724 9
Operating samngs $ 80845 57519 60876 §,2357 56938 4,5785 20422 43623 3,898 3 29740 31518
Interest expense $ 5624 5301 5531 5187 5285 6931 4162 2414 2002 1883 2380
Interest income $ 792 (852) {105 5} (437 8) (201 2) (138 8) (123 8) 877 (51 1) @19 (335
Other fincoma), net {b) $ 13168 158 6 ©820y (13755} 489 7} (347 5} {5269 (411 3} (376 4} {558 5) (374 4y
Eamings from continuing

operations before taxes % 62626 5,198 6 57128 7.1838 5,856 3 4,46086 22764 46199 41256 3,287 2 33210
Taxes on earnngs from

cominung operations $ 2097 4702 1,086 7 14479 11221 8633 5546 12470 049 8 8824 7740
Eamings from

COrtrwnng operations % 59629 4,7284 46262 57458 47342 3.606 3 17168 33721 31758 2504 7 25470
Basic earnings per share

from continuing operations 8 a7 3 298 an 308 234 112 217 203 160 163
Diuted earnings per share

from continuing operations $ ar2 3ot 296 369 303 23 112 218 202 159 162
Financial Position

Working capitel §180a24 82885 5,085 1 10,264 4 5,106 8 493856 6893 39705 368088 26500 21196
Long texmn investments £ 2738 3782 3020 11329 10737 11253 12209 1340 1458 406 4 2508
Net property end eciprent $ 80630 78740 78710 168105 72192 75181 GQ4G 4 8,003 1 60079 82818 58281
Total assets 67,2349 BO2760 605739 525816 424102 397139 361782 280412 2876rS 260393 235927
Long term debt $18,0853 120388 125235 112663 87133 84878 7.0007 45715 47879 34523 42740
Shareholders iImvestment $268132 245281 22,765 1 231874 175187 17,8239 1405642 14,4153 143258 130723 106646
Return on shareholders

investment from

contnuiNg operatons % 232 200 204 284 269 227 121 235 238 226 280
Book value per share $ 17 1562 14 53 1476 1126 1147 914 837 918 836 682
Other Statistics

Gross profit margin % 621 6090 583 571 573 559 563 524 549 550 554
Research and development

to net sales % 108 106 106 B9 91 a7 10c az 86 94 a7
Net cash from

operatng actvities

of continuing operations $ 93144 8,970 1 87360 72752 69946 5,183 8 52821 H047 4 43060 33852 3,653 5
Capital expendlitures $17953 1491 5 10151 10890 1,287 7 16562 13378 12075 12816 10501 1,105 4
Cash dwdends declared

per cormmon share & 167 182 176 160 144 130 118 110 104 008 094
Common shares

outstanding {in thousans) 1576667 1570379 1546984 1,551,168 1552433 1549910 1537243 1539235 15060024 1564518 1,563,068
Number of

common shareholders 60 476 62,939 64 413 67 461 69733 731786 77727 82,237 88 582 M 212 94,687
Number of employees 92639 91,922 281,440 72 668 6B B3B8 86,697 66,663 59,735 50617 58,181 57 819
Sales per employee in dodars)  $428033 422655 384588 422,198 428943 377225 337163 373948 324662 207010 284,265
Market price per sharg - high & 7247 56 44 5679 5739 6109 58 50 48 87 &0 00 4763 4715 58 00
Market pnice per share - low $ 5396 4507 4459 M7 4575 4875 818 3rs0 3826 375 2980
Market phco per share—close $ 6550 5623 4791 5399 5337 86 15 48 71 3943 46 65 46 60 4000

(@) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 and 2001 Abbolt also recorded pratax charges of $288 $673 $313 $170 $204 $17 $279 $100 $108 ond $1 330
respacirely for acouirad m process research and development
(b} 2012 nchudes $1 350 far tha net loss on exinguishment of debt




